

INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF SOCIAL, POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH (IJoSPER)

PUBLISHER:

IEDSR ASSOCIATION

EDITOR:

RAHMAT ULLAH

BOARD OF REVIEWERS:

PROF. DR. AKM SHAHNAWAZ

PROF. DR. ATM ATIQUR RAHMAN

PROF. DR. BASHIR AHMED

PROF. DR. MD. RUHUL AMIN

PROF. DR. NASEEM AKTHAR HUSSAIN

PROF. DR. SIDDIQUR RAHMAN

PROF. DR. VAHİT GÖKTAŞ

ASSOC. PROF. DR. ABUL HOSSAIN

ASSOC. PROF. DR. M. MOHIBUL HAQUE

ASSOC. PROF. DR. MD. SULTAN MAHMUD

ASSIST. PROF. DR. AHMAD MUJTABA SIDDIQUI

ASSIST. PROF. DR. MD. ALIUR RAHMAN

DR. MEHEBUB SAHANA



INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF SOCIAL, POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH (IJoSPER)

YEAR: 2014

VOL: 1

CONTENTS

MD. SAIFULLAH	1-10
MIDDLE EAST AND USA: ENTERING A NEW PERIOD	
SABBIR HASAN	
PREPARATION POTENTIALS, EXPENDITURES AND APPLIED	11-19
FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE OF EUROPEAN UNION BUDGET	
SAEYD RASHED HASAN CHOWDURY	
TAFSIR IBN KATHIR; BIOGRAPHY OF WRITER & SPECIALIST IN	20-40
TAFSIR	
RAHMAT ULLAH	41-49
THE ROLE OF INNOVATION IN GLOBAL COMPETITION	41-49
BACHCHU SHEIKH	
EROSION OF KOBADAK RIVER AND ADAPTATION PROCESS OF THE	50-61
LOCAL PEOPLE	



International Journal of Social, Political and Economic Research



ISSN: 2667-8810 (Online) https://www.ijosper.co.uk/



Original Article

Article No: 14_V1_I1_A1

MIDDLE EAST AND USA: ENTERING A NEW PERIOD

MD. SAIFULLAH*

* Asian University of Bangladesh, Department of Government and Politics.

md.saifullah83@gmail.com

Abstract:

This article follows the United States in the Middle East, especially after the end of the Cold War. Aims to examine its role. US administration with the end of the Cold War In order to create a new order in the Middle East, he developed a new strategy and it is based on three key elements: Arab-Israeli peace, double siege and political and economic reform. When these strategies ended one after another in the late 1990s, in 2001, he was put in power by changing Clinton's failed Middle East policy 2001. George W. Bush tried to establish a new policy in the Middle East with the claim of rebuilding the weakened leadership of the United States. Basically with the influence of neo-conservatives From the policy of containment created within the framework of as military power and moral openness "The US policy, which shifted to the preemptive war strategy, has failed, especially as the Iraq War has shown, and weakened the US role in the region. This article is final and the expectations of the Barack Obama administration and discuss possible developments.

Key Words:

Middle East, USA, Middle East Policy.

1. Introduction

End of the Cold War Almost in the Middle East with the Gulf Crisis simultaneously. These two developments had important implications for the political developments in the region. The most important of these effects redefining the role and relations of the US in the region It has been. In this article, the Middle East policy of the USA, various stages of this policy and the responses of regional actors regarding these policies will be discussed. Finally, all these developments The themes of change and continuity of the Obama administration in the Middle East policy the opportunities and limitations of developing a new policy It will be discussed.

2. The End of the Cold War and the m New Middle East Order

The impact of the structure of the international system and the changes in this structure on the regional policy is controversial. It is clear that the strategic importance of the Middle East region hence, it has historically been overwhelmed by the great states and hence has been affected by the power distribution and balance in the international system.

The USA, which emerged as the most important actor in the global market after World War II, came to the position of chief non-regional actor in the Middle East in a short time. The US-USSR competition and the struggle that emerged globally also affected the Middle East policy. Therefore, the USSR in the Middle East to prevent the possible activity, especially in this context the Gulf and to ensure that it flows at affordable prices, during the Cold War, was one of the most important pillars of the US's regional policy. In spite of the relative superiority of the US, the USSR established alliances in the region and increased its influence in the region with a pro-Arab attitude, which it adopted after the 1960s, especially in the Arab-Israeli conflict. As a result The struggle between the two superpowers influenced the regional policy, and in these years the regional Cold War was experienced in the Middle East.

However, the Cold War is not sufficient to explain all developments in the region. Arab nationalism, the rise of political Islam, the Iranian revolution and even the Arab-Israeli major developments in the region such as the recent analysis of the region formed by dynamics. In this context, such developments affected the system as much as they were affected by the international system. Similarly, although the end of the Cold War had a significant impact on regional policy, this effect led to new results in interaction with regional dynamics. Bipolar World End has a direct impact on Syria and Iraq.

3. Historical Analysis

Beginning from the Gorbachev period, the USSR had to cut its aid to these countries and in particular to press Syria to pay its debts. It began. More generally, the disintegration of the USSR meant that even for pro-Western countries there was no longer any manoeuvring areas available. The effects of the new era in the Middle East have been felt with the Gulf Crisis. Saddam, who does not fully understand the meaning of the end of the Cold War. the crisis that began with the invasion of Kuwait by the regime of the United Nations (UN) legitimacy by the international power created under the US leadership under the umbrella With the defeat of Iraq, it has moved to a new stage. The Gulf War itself The end of the Cold War is one of the consequences of the region. The change in the international system was reflected in the UN Security Council and a decision was taken to intervene in Iraq.

The Gulf War has created new parameters for the region. Both in terms of the Arab-Israeli conflict and the Gulf equilibrium Iraq, which is an important actor and has a considerable economic power due to its oil resources, defeat in the Gulf War and the following developments lost weight. Another loser of the war is the Saddam regime. They are Palestinians because of their support, and because of the economic difficulties created by the crisis. Syria reads global and regional developments correctly status has been redefined. Assad regime against the power created against Iraq to join the Madrid Peace Conference in 1991 has decided. On the other hand, the developments for Iran are both positive and has led to negative consequences. On the one hand the enemy of Iraq defeats Tehran while the US influence in the region caused discomfort. In Israel, the balance of powers with the weakening of a significant Arab country they are also pleased with the development in their favour. But the ruling right The Likud government was uncomfortable with being forced into the peace process. the Labour Party government has been in the balance of new powers He believed that he established a favourable ground to implement the principle of land for peace.

Within this framework, the US has established a strategy of using its leading role at a global and regional level to create a new Middle East order. This strategy is George The Bush administration began in the last period, new elements with the Clinton administration has been developed. The new strategy was sitting on a tripod: Arab-Israel Peace Process; Double Siege policy and political and economic reform. Immediately after the Gulf War, the US administration created the crisis He believed in the necessity of resolving the Arab-Israeli conflict in order to protect the coalition and create a new regional order. For this purpose, a lot of pressure on the Likud government in Israel was reluctant.

Finally an international conference in 1991, Madrid Conference, gathered. The Madrid Peace Process, consisting of both bilateral and multilateral negotiations, is short time. The United States this time, the Norwegian Liberation in the mediation of Norway Organization (PLO) and the Labor Party government in Israel reached and started the framework agreement began to support the process. In the meantime, he worked on the progress of the negotiations within the framework of Madrid. Therefore, the US's new strategy is important a size is a normal actor of Israel to end the Arab-Israeli conflict and in the region to ensure acceptance.

The second leg of the US's new strategy is the Clinton era It was a double siege policy. This policy would be seen as a source of instability in the region by Washington, which is expected to dynamically enact the Arab-Israeli Peace Process. the two countries targeted were Iraq and Iran. This strategy is the In the post-war period, forces between Iran and Iraq in the Gulf it meant abandoning its policy of ensuring balance. The US is now abandoning its policy of using these two countries against each other and developing a new policy to isolate them both. US new The Gulf policy had two most important reasons. First of all, the disintegration of the USSR and with the emergence of a unipolar system, there was no power to support countries against the US. Therefore, Washington He could isolate Iran. Moreover, the Gulf Cooperation Council after the Gulf War. The member countries were developing military relations with the United States and even began to be less cautious in providing a base for the US. Thus the US military it would have the means to implement such a policy.

The isolation of Iraq was carried out through the policies imposed on Iraq in the UN umbrella after the Gulf War. After the ceasefire agreement, the economic embargo on Iraq continued. The United Nations Specail Commission (UNSCOM) was also assigned to oversee the weapons of mass destruction in Iraq. Finally, in response to the bloody rebellion of the Saddam regime, the UN Security Council was the first to decide on humanitarian intervention in the north and south of Iraq. With reference to this decision, the north of Iraq's 36th parallel and the south of the 32nd parallel were expanded to 33rd. In this process, the region, which was formed by the withdrawal of the central government from some areas in the north, passed from the control of the central government to the administration of two Kurdish Kurds in the north, the Kurdistan Democratic Party (KDP) led by Massoud Barzani and the Kurdistan Patriotic Union (PUK) led by Jalal Talabani. All these developments limited Iraqi sovereignty. US, Britain and France that create and apply these policies was stationed at the air base in Turkey Hammer Force in Iraq. The policy of the siege of Iraq has been formed within the framework of the UN and the support of other countries in a variety of ways. It has evolved as Washington's policy and in later years stayed. The Clinton administration first decided to sanction Iran in 1995 with an execution order

took. Later in 1997, the Congress extended the sanctions imposed on Iran with the Iran-Libya Sanctions Law. The most important element of the double siege policy is the Gulf the US military presence was unprecedented in the region.

The last leg of the US's new Middle East order was the process of political and economic reform in the region. This policy was one of the important pillars of the post-Cold War global policy. In the end, the US's victory in the Cold War was seen as the triumph of liberal democracy and capitalism that the US represented in this war. Now to get rid of the US pressure of regimes There was no other superpower that they could approach. Within this framework as well as in the Middle East, it supported political and economic reform. However, the US support for political reform was very short. As in the case of Algeria, the US decided to abandon the political reform process, as the political Islamists in these countries would benefit. Short economic liberalization has been implemented in a controlled manner. Nevertheless, the US supported the integration of Middle Eastern countries into the global economy in areas other than oil.

By the mid-1990s, however, there were problems in every part of the US's new Middle East policy. As mentioned above, the first limitation of this policy emerged in the foot of political and economic reform. Soon, significant problems were encountered in the other two pillars of the US's new Middle East order. The most important success of the Arab-Israeli Peace Process in Israel in 1994 and Jordan. Jordan became the second Arab country to make peace with Israel after Egypt. However, this was an expected development. The other feet of the Peace Process were facing increasing problems. Yasser Arafat with the agreements signed within the framework of the Oslo Peace Process. He returned to Palestine and was elected President of the Palestinian Authority. A parliament was formed as a result of the elections, and Palestinian-Israeli relations faced major crises in the second half of the 1990s, although the administration in the West Bank and Gaza was transferred to the Palestinian Authority. As a result, the peace process ended in 2000 and the Israeli-Palestinian relations evolved into a more problematic one. Similarly, Israel-Syria talks ended in 2000 as well.

On the other hand, the double siege policy faced serious problems. The US policy on Iraq has been increasingly criticized by its allies. In the mid-1990s, one of the permanent members of the Security Council, France, Russia and China, began to say that the sanctions and inspections on Iraq should now end. These countries signed oil exploration agreements with the Iraqi administration. France is out of Hammer Power. The countries of the region have also started to openly criticize the US policy. On the other hand, various UN agencies have started to reveal

how sanctions imposed on Iraq have harmed the Iraqi people. In short, there was no longer any international and regional consensus on Iraq.

The US's policy of siege of Iran has never received the support of its allies. In contrast to US policy, the European Union (EU) began to implement a seçil critical dialogue "against Iran and a' constructive link in policy after the election of the reformist Khatami as president. On the other hand, a natural gas pipeline deal with Iran, a country the United States by listening to their protests could play a critical role in the implementation of these policies such as Turkey. Problems in the double siege policy began to be criticized in the United States since the mid-1990s. In particular, the Republicans regarded this policy as one of the failures of the Clinton administration. 11 September and the effort to reshape the Middle East George W. Bush, who took office in January 2001, changed the Middle East policy of the Clinton administration, which he saw as failing he came to power with the claim. Although the Middle East policy of the new administration also carries characteristics related to the region, It was also greatly influenced by the project of building the US leadership. The ideology of the neo-conservatives who took part in the Bush administration the direction of the Bush administration's policies He gave. Believing that the American global leadership was good for both America and the world, the neo-conservatives were in favor of America's use of great military power to build and strengthen the leadership.

Criticizing the policies of the Clinton era, the new conservatives, in order to support lari America's global leadership The, founded the US government in 1997, as part of the New American Century Project (The Project for the New Ameri Can Century). they argued that they should pursue a policy of power and moral openness. The advocates of this ideology increased their weight in the Bush administration after the September 11 attacks, and made it easier for them to provide public support to their policies. Thus the new National developed in 2002. The Security Strategy set out the principles of the Bush administration's new policy. For the establishment of American hegemony, the US was now developing the doctrine of preventive war, not the policy of containment. This kind of war, such as the support of international organizations such as the UN he didn't need it.

4. Significance of Regional Situation

The Middle East region was of particular importance for the Bush administration in terms of new foreign policy and security understanding and policies. Three main reasons for this First of all, this region, which contains more than 60 percent of the world's oil reserves, is the key for the global hegemony of the US as before. It was important. Moreover, the activity of the

US here before and Japan's extreme dependence on Middle Eastern oil, now it was added that the United States would be increasingly dependent on this region. In the second week the Bush Administration came to power Developing a National Energy Policy led by Deputy Dick Cheney The group had created. The report prepared by the Group is the need for Gulf oil will be one of the most important sources. Second, the Bush administration US hegemony He believed that the basic resistance came from the Arab / Muslim world. In this context, the new administration seemed to be acting within the parameters of the 1 War of Civilization "proposed by Samuel Huntington. 11th The September attacks strengthened these theses. On the other hand, countries such as Iraq and Iran The policies were disrupting the US's projects to redesign the Middle East. Indeed, after the Cold War, US-led leadership The new Middle East order was faced with problems. As described above The Arab-Israeli Peace Process has ended, and challenges to US policy in Iraq and Iran have increased. Finally, for the new-conservatives Israel's security was of particular importance. For those who represent the Christian right and the pro-Likud Jews within the neo-conservatives, the elimination of threats to security and the restructuring of the region was essential in this respect.

5. Middle East Policy Analysis from different Cases

The following elements of the new US policy created within this general framework. First, it was necessary to rebuild the American leadership, which was thought to be weakening in the Middle East, and to break the resistance against the new Middle East order. The Bush administration claimed that the policies of the Clinton era were showing weakness in America and failed in both Iraq and Iran. In this context, new policy-making efforts the administration favored the policy set against these countries as a source of instability in the Middle East. As mentioned above, this opinion was already supported by the neo-conservatives within the administration. September 11 2001 attacks strengthened these views, obliterated the differences within the administration and provided public support. Bush administration launched after September 11. In the framework of the "war on terror", he declared war on Iraq. Furthermore, in his "State of the Nation Silah speech, January 29, 2002, George W. Bush declared Iran the" axis of evil "accusing Iraq and North Korea of supporting terrorism and trying to develop Mass Destruction Weapons. Although Syria did not enter this list, Washington, unlike the Clinton period, demonstrated that it would pursue a policy of exclusion of Syria in this new period. The second characteristic of the Bush administration's policy is that Arab-Israeli conflict resolution in terms of regional security and stability it wasn't important. Bush administration in Israel Sharon government in Palestine accepted his approach to the problem as a matter of terror. In this context, he gave weight to the issues of reform in Palestine and Israel's security. On the other hand, unlike Clinton, he made no effort to revive the Israeli-Syrian leg of the Peace Process. On the contrary, as mentioned above, it has a policy of isolating Syria. He blamed the Syrian regime for supporting Hezbollah and Hamas, which he described as a terrorist organization, and for supporting resistance fighters in Iraq. The US condemns Syria's custody of Lebanon, while in the period of Bush, Syria was withdrawn from Lebanon.

The last leg of the Bush administration's Middle East policy was the democratization and economic reforms, using military force, in the Middle East, called the Great Middle East Project, if necessary. As mentioned earlier, Clinton had the idea of supporting political and economic reforms. In fact, the foundations of this policy were a continuation with the liberal discourse that became dominant in the international system in the 1980s. The liberal international politics, which believed that liberal democracy and the free market economy should be extended for international peace and prosperity, developed the doctrine of liberal interventionism, especially with the weakening of the USSR and the end of the bipolar world. In this period, this understanding dominated by international organizations is overwhelmed by authoritarian and totalitarian regimes. The Bush administration has further developed this rhetoric and made it part of the ru war on terror üşt strategy launched after 9/11. Thus the neoconservatism and liberal interventionism ideologies in the Bush administration meet came. The doctrine of the United States in the Middle East for years to stabilize stability he criticized the fact that the anti-American contingent of peoples and social movements, which had been affected by authoritarian regimes in the region due to this policy, formed. This view believes that democracy and freedoms are the antidote to terrorism, and thus advocate regime change in the Middle East.

6. Significance of those Policies

The first and most important application area of the Bush administration's new Middle East strategy It was Iraq. Important names of the new conservatives Charles Krauthammer he argued that just before the war, Iraq would provide both a practice site and a springboard to the basic concepts of the doctrine. Really Iraqi The war turned out to be meaningful in terms of achieving the fundamental Middle East policies discussed above by the Bush administration. USA one hand Iraq heal his reputation in the Middle East through mending he would show the enemy and reestablish his dominant role, on the other hand "Free and democratic Iraq" which will be created after Saddam, the whole Middle East to create a domino effect and to ignite the transformation in the Middle East, which is the most resilient region in the world. From this

perspective, it can be said that the Bush administration's policies have been largely unsuccessful for the United States, such as those in the Clinton era. In other words, these policies are in the region as what the Bush Administration intended He did not consolidate Iran's position, nor neutralized Iran. Provided a transformation that the US wanted in the region. The only success for the US was the destruction of Saddam's regime in Iraq, as intended. But this success has been very great. A large number of war it is clear that it cost the lives of civilian Iraqis and US soldiers. Also war and The American occupation has destroyed Iraq's infrastructure and institutions. US invasion It has also been a huge burden on the American economy, and it has been suggested that this burden is one of the major causes of the ongoing economic crisis.

American occupation has caused a great turmoil and instability in Iraq and Iraq has become the base of radical groups, as anti-war activists have previously warned. The new political structure built on identities in Iraq created political instability and fueled sectarian and ethnic hostilities, and the country witnessed Sunni and Shiite sectarian conflicts. Contrary to the expectations of the Bush administration, Iraqi oil still could not enter the world market due to this situation in the country. In general, the Iraqi policies of the US have fueled anti-Americanism both in Iraq and the region.

In addition to the problems in Iraq, the regional policy has developed in opposition to the new regional policies of the United States. Iran and Syria, which the Bush administration announced after the Iraqi target, increased their activities in the region. Especially Iran is not only in the Gulf region but also in the Middle East. He has been struggling with the US. Recognizing that the US's vision of the Middle East is against its own interests, Iran and its allies, such as Syria and Hezbollah and Hamas, have done their best to prevent this vision from happening. Iran and Syria have become active in both Iraqi politics and in Lebanon and Palestine. This activity is the policy of the US in Iraq. In the Arab-Israeli front, Israel also turned into a military weak. The theme of the Shiite-Sunni conflict, which the United States and its allies emphasized to break the increasing Iranian influence in the region, further increased instability in countries such as Iraq and Lebanon.

7. Conclusion

The democratization project was shelved in a short time. In Iraq as the Bush administration argued, the challenges faced were once again challenging the democratization of the country. Once again, it was once again understood that a democratic opening in the other Arab countries would bring political Islamist parties to power, and the Bush administration completely disappeared from the discourse of democratization, especially in its second period. In Palestine,

reform is a key element in its policy and for elections to be held the Bush administration, who continuously put pressure on these elections, won this election when Hamas won applied various policies to isolate.

8. References

Conry, Barbara, "America's Misguided Policy of Dual Containment in the Persain Gulf," CATO Foreign Policy Briefing, No. 33, CATO Institute, 10 Kasım 1994, http://www.cato.org/pubs/fpbriefs/fpb-033.html

Dalby, Simon, "Geopolitics, the revolution in military affairs and the Bush doctrine", International Politics, VOL: 46, No: 2 & 3, ss. 234-252.

Dodge, Toby, "Coming face to face with bloody reality: Liberal common sense and the ideological failure of the Bush Doctrine in Iraq," International Politics, VOL: 46, No: 2 & 3, 2009, ss. 253-275.

Hinnebusch, Raymond, "The American Invasion of Iraq: Causes and Consequences," Perceptions, Special Issue on the Middle East, VOL: 12, No: 1, Bahar 2007, ss.9-27.

______, "Defying the Hegemon: Syria and the Iraqi War", International Journal of Contemporary Iraqi Studies, VOL 2, No. 3, 2009, ss. 375-390.

Hoff, Joan, A Faustian Foreign Policy, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2008. Karauthamer, Charles, "Coming Ashore," Time, 17 Şubat 2003.

Kerr, Malcolm The Arab Cold War: Gamal abd-al Nasir and His Rivals, 1958-1970, London, New York, Published for the Royal Institute of International Affairs by Oxford University Press, 1971.

Patnam, Robert G, "Out of sync: Bush's expanded national security state and the war on terror" International Politics, VOL 46, No: 2 & 3, ss. 210-233.

Scherman, Harvey, "America's Alliance Anxieties: The Strange Death of Dual Containment," Orbis, VOL 41, Issue 2, Bahar 1997, ss. 223-240.

International Journal of Social, Political and Economic Research



ISSN: 2667-8810 (Online) https://www.ijosper.co.uk/



Original Article

Article No: 14_V1_I1_A2

PREPARATION POTENTIALS, EXPENDITURES AND APPLIED FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE OF EUROPEAN UNION BUDGET

SABBIR HASAN*®

*Department of International Security, Turkish National Police Academy.

sabbirhasan@cenraps.org

ORCID.ORG/0000-0002-0637-9491

Abstract:

Europe is one of the most important economic actors of 28 European countries in this study on the expenditure budget of the Union, expenditure items are mentioned. Starting from 1988 to date applied, determined by the method of determining the upper limits of annual expenditure as a result of multi-annual financial perspectives in which long and violent discussions took place; determined priority policies, more efficient use of resources and meeting the needs periodic changes in expenditures have been studied.

Key Words:

European Union Budget, Budget Expenditures, Financial Perspective.

1. Introduction

The European Union is the world's most important form of integration One of the main determinants. Identifying the policies and activities of the Union and The most important tool for execution is the budget. The budget aims to achieve the objectives of the community and this is the reflection of the current political will in the conduct of its policies. For targeted purposes to be realized for the realization of expenditures and expenditures revenues are organized within the framework of the budget system. From the foundation of the Union to the present a variety of budget system amendments were made (Zülfüoğlu, 20011: 21).

Our work is very important for the functioning of the union and the implementation of policies will try to make over the European Union expense budget. In the light of the findings expenditure items of the unity budget and the periodic changes in these expenditures will be detected.

In the first part of the four-part study; The general budget of the European Union structure, properties and preparation phases will be discussed. In the second part; unity budgetary expenditure items will be evaluated. In the third part; applied multi-year financial perspectives, determined priority policies and the budget of these perspectives and how they affect their expenditures. In the last section; previously the topics covered will be summarized and the findings will be evaluated.

2. European Union Budget and Preparation Phase in General

The European Union (EU) is a supranational entity of 28 European countries. It is organizing. The EU's common policies since the Treaty of Rome (agriculture, trade, competition, social policies, transport, environment, tax, energy, etc.), EU countries help to accelerate the integration process from the political and economic point of view It is. The EU's founding agreements and subsequent arrangements to implement the common policies put into place and to their economic, social and political objectives. the most important financial tool used to reach the EU budget (Bilge and Çelikay, 2010: 2).

The budget of the European Union, the income and expenses of the Union in the fiscal year It is a legal saving that anticipates and allows them to be implemented and implemented. Budget The foundation of the European Coal and Steel Community (ECSC) in 1951 It is based. According to this system, the community budget is calculated through the percentages of the member states funded by contributions. Union budget, European Parliament, Council of Ministers and It reflects the joint decision of the Commission on annual expenditure plans. This

The budget is the text of the financial reconciliation between the institutions of the Union for a specific year. (Wallece and Pollack, 2005: 191).

The Union's budget is one of the economic objectives and policies of the member states. the existence and existence of different Union policies, the result is. Although the EU has not yet become a classic act as a state to implement its own policies formed. Financed by various income items, especially the Gross National Income share with this budget, expenditures are being made to implement common policies and policies are tried to be directed. EU, which is a reflection of the EU's common policies budget expenditures are also made for the realization of these common policies. (Yılmazcan, 1999: 30). EU budget expenditures, the Union's common policies it is important for the continuation of policies.

The volume of the Union budget is approximately 1% of the total national income of all member states It is up. A large part of the budget revenues collected for the financing of expenditures agriculture, fisheries, infrastructure, education and training, culture, labor force, social policy, environment policies, health and consumer protection, research and development activities they are allocated to common policies. In addition, freedom, justice and the development of security, in this way to adopt the idea of European citizenship initiatives are supported. Some of the budget resources are global support to economic development in the plane and to foreign countries affected by natural disasters humanitarian aid.

Expenditure on the said areas is made by the Member States. limited by agreements. As a matter of fact, the open connection is not permitted. So the budget the revenues to be collected on the basis of the expenditures must meet the expenditure. In addition, the budget of the Union is adopted by the member states' governments and parliaments. the upper expenditure limit has been implemented" (European Commission (EC), 2007: 2).

According to this upper limit, which is called as esi Equity Ceiling Tav, the total Union shall not exceed 1.24% of its national income by its expenditure or revenues. (http://ec.europa.eu/budget/budget_glance/ index_en.htm (Access: 15.01.2013)).

In order to limit the Union budget in terms of expenditure items, Parliament for several years from 1988 by the Council of Ministers and the Commission financial perspectives are implemented. Finally, the fifth of financial perspectives, 2014 perspektif2020 Financial Perspective was applied.

5 principles that the Community has adopted in terms of understanding the community's budget we need to mention. These; principle of unity, principle of generality, principle of annuality, principle of equality and is the principle of clarity.

- -With the principle of being together, income and expenses will be collected in a single document and an effective distribution will be the subject of.
- The principle of generality is based on the principle that all revenues will be financed for all expenditures.
- The annual principle of a fiscal year between 1 January and 31 December is a principle based on budgeting. Long-term investment expenditures they can be said to be an exception to the principle of being 1 year.
- The equality principle emphasizes the concept of equivalent budget. So made with income the principle of equalization of expenditures has been adopted.
- The principle of clarity is a principle created to prevent confusion. Every allowance should be reserved for the purpose. It should not be assigned to any other purpose other than this purpose. Preparation phase of the EU budget Expenditure estimates for the various bodies of the Community starts with. These estimates are notified to the Commission by 1 July at the latest. The Commission prepares the first draft between July and August. Prepared this draft latest 1 September up to the Council. The draft budget is prepared by the Council in September. October 5 The draft budget is submitted to parliament. Budget bill in maximum 45 days is examined by. If parliament approves the budget, the budget becomes final. But the budget if it is changed, it is sent to the council again for the second review. Not more than 15 days here If the Council adopts this amendment by parliament, the budget becomes final. Council If he does not accept the changes in parliament, he is sent to parliament a second time. Parliament If the Council does not accept the bill, the Settlement Procedure is established. On this procedure If the agreement is reached, the budget shall be accepted and entered into force. If parliament rejects the budget The Council prepares the new budget and the procedure starts again (Sahin, 1998: 119).

3. Spending Items of the EU Budget

At the Community level, which expenditures are to be made whether it is more effective at Community or Community level, in other words, substitution is determined by the rule. Budget expenditures Community policies for the purpose of realization (Bilici, 1997: 51). Structure of Community Expenditures the maximum amounts that are generated in financial perspectives Budget expenditures are made for the purpose of realizing community policies. There are two types of budget expenditures: compulsory and non-compulsory expenditure. Compulsory expenditures are classified as non-compulsory expenditure. Council of Ministers mandatory non-compulsory expenditure

in the European Parliament has the last word on it. The importance of these distinctions is successful as a result of the agreements decreased. While preparing and implementing budget great importance is given to cooperation (Dura and Atik, 2003: 264).

Until the 1960s, EU spending was very low, while in 1960s It has increased considerably with the introduction of the Agricultural Policy and compliance expenditures in the 1980s. From the 1970s to the 1990s, the EU budget increased in proportion to the EU GNP Since 1994, the ratio of budget to GNP has remained around 1%. (Baldwin and Wyplosz, 2004: 60).

4. Both the perspectives and in its annual implementation budgets

Expenditures are classified under six headings. The first expenditure heading is ülebilir Sustainable Development İlk. This with the title, the Union's continuous economic, social and cultural development resources will be transferred to the service areas. Için Competitiveness for Growth and Employment ", this is the first subheading of this expenditure item, activities to be carried out. One of the main objectives of the European Union the importance of this subheading is even better understandable. This is the sub-title of the "Lisbon Work and Business Strategy" repetitive The second sub-title of üme Sustainable Development baş is dür Growth and Adaptation for Employment. Unity policy of the Union is balanced and sustainable during the enlargement process economic and social welfare among the member states in terms of achieving development aims to be provided. In this respect, ve Adaptation for Growth and Employment " to improve the developmental differences between states, regions and rural-urban areas; To achieve a balanced socio-economic distribution within the Union the resources allocated to the activities to be performed.

The second expenditure title of the Union budget ikinci Protection of Natural Resources and Management "is. Common Agricultural Policy, rural development policy and fisheries policies directed through the header. Eler Market Support Aids and Direct Payments " is the main expenditure area of this title. Outside this basic spending area; rural development, European Fisheries Fund and European environmental program such as FIBERS + It is provided.

The third spending title of the Union budget is, Citizenship, Freedom, Security and Justice "is. Ensuring citizenship rights, freedom, justice and security within the Union expenses incurred for the creation of a living space under this heading and makta Freedom, Security and Justice "and Güvenlik Citizenship". consists of the title. "Freedom, Security and Justice § sub-heading management of security, security, protection of freedoms, fundamental rights and justice. to establish a link between the steps to be taken and to ensure solidarity in this way transfer is

performed. Iyla Citizenship ğ sub-heading, increasing social participation, consumer protection, health care, European culture and diversity the steps to be taken in many points such as the exit are provided.

5. Periodic Changes in European Union Budget Expenditures

European Union budget since mid-1988, medium-term fiscal framework or shortly "Financial perspective I It is prepared. Bir The financial perspective is for a certain period of time for a certain budget in the framework of discipline. Expenditures of the EU under the name of al headings' consists of categories. The headings should not exceed the maximum the amount is determined (IKV Publications, 2004: .39). According to the determined financial period The expenditure of the EU in that period is classified into headings. Financial perspectives are drafted by the European Commission and unanimously requires approval by the European Parliament and the approval of the Parliament (Fontaine, 2007: 27). The first financial framework of the Community was established on 25 March 1957 the Treaty of Rome (Articles 268-279). The EU budget system is not a one-year process, but in the form of financial plans spanning more than one year. It is prepared. Financial perspectives, the first one for 5 years and the other four for 7 years has been developed to adapt its budget according to changing time and needs.

6. Conclusion and Recommendations

The budget of the European Union has been It is an important tool for determining policies. Budget expenditures are the policies of the union It is extremely important to be able to implement and achieve its goals. the Union expenditure items; "Sustainable development ve," conservation and management of natural resources ", "Citizenship, freedom, security and justice olarak," European Union as a global actor, and lik administration lik expenditure can be classified under five main headings. Expense budget is an important "sustainable, which aims to make economic growth and sustain it "development" and also covers the expenditure on agricultural activities. conservation and management of resources i expenditures.

Union budget has been implemented since 1988, in the financial perspective and the method of determining the upper limit of annual expenditure. Financial perspectives limit the union expenditures for the determined years and in order to implement the policies, the share allocated from the budget is allocated. Increasing revenues and its common market in the first financial perspective (1988-1992) aimed at reducing agricultural spending policies for conservation,

ensuring stability, structural policies and equity have been priority policies. Monetary in the second financial perspective (1993-1999) provision of unity, cohesion policies, social policies and common agricultural policy (CAP) reform objectives have gained importance. In the third financial perspective (2000-20006) the focus is on strengthening community policies and the enlargement process. Important of the budget some are devoted to spending on agricultural and structural activities. Fourth financial in perspective (2007-2013) where priority policies change compared to other financial plans Seen. Agricultural and structural activities where a significant portion of the budget is allocated sustainable development and natural resource management. In addition, agriculture expenditure item has been excluded. Elimination of interregional development difference, competitive an economy, unity becoming a global power, economic growth and employment the primary objectives of the plan. In the fifth financial perspective (2014-2020), the EU's financial outlook for the first time in 2007-2013 It is seen that a decrease by 3.7% compared to the expenditure appropriations. Experienced more effective and qualified resources to survive the impact of economic and financial crisis total expenditure in the budget targeting economic growth and use When we look at the share of different expenditures; sustainable with intelligent and inclusive growth where the growth is a priority policy of the union and a significant part of the budget items.

Five different financial perspectives have been prepared for the first five years. Each budgetary priorities for policies needed and determined in the financial perspective shows. Looking at the EU budget expenditures in the last period; economic growth and making it sustainable; increasing employment and competitiveness; resources are enabled and importance of policies aimed at increasing economic use and the quality of expenditures he won.

7. Reference

2014-2020 Mali Çerçevesi, Derleme. Avrupa Komisyonu (2011a), Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, A Budget for Europe 2020.

Ali Kemal AYDIN, "AB Bütçesi: Hazırlanması, Gelir Kaynakları, Gider Kalemleri ve Denetimi", Uluslararası Ekonomik Sorunlar Dergisi, Sayı-XIII, 2004.

Avrupa Bakanlar Konseyi Basın Duyurusu, Brüksel, Aralık 2013.

Bilge ve Çelikay, "Avrupa Birliği Bütçe Harcamaları ve 2007–2010 Dönemi AB Bütçe Harcamalarının Analizi", Afyon Kocatepe Üniversitesi, İ.İ.B.F. Dergisi (C.X II,S I, 2010).

CAN, E. ve D. A. KOCAGÜL, Avrupa Birliği'nde Bölgesel Politikanın Gelişimi ve Yapısal Fonlar, TEPAV Yayını, 1.Basım, Ankara, 2008.

Cihan Dura, Hayriye Atik, "Avrupa Birliği Gümrük Birliği ve Türkiye", 2. Basım, Ankara: Nobel Basın Yayın ve Dağıtım, 2003.

Dilek YILMAZCAN, "Avrupa Topluluğu Bütçe Politikası", M.Ü. Maliye Araştırma ve Uygulama Merkezi Yayını, İstanbul, 1999.

European Commission (EC), The European Union Budget at a Glance, Office forOfficial Publications of the European Communities, Belgium, 2007.

European Commission COM(2005) 101 final, Brussels, 2005.

FONTAINE P., "AB Nedir?", Avrupa Toplulukları, 2007.

GÜVENÇ, M.H., "Avrupa Birliği Bütçesi: 2014-2020 Yıllarına ilişkin Çok Yıllı Mali Çerçeve", Maliye Dergisi, Sayı 165, Temmuz-Aralık 2013.

Helen WALLACE, William WALLECE, Mark A.POLLACK, Policy Making in the European Union, Oxford University Press, New York, 2005.

http://ec.europa.eu/budget/budget glance/ index en.htm (Erişim: 15.01.2013).

http://www.dtm.gov.tr/dtadmin/upload/EAD/TantimKoordinasyon/abbut.doc,

Erişim (10.05.2013).

İktisadi Kalkınma Vakfı, "Avrupa Birliği'nin Bütçesi ve Türkiye'deki Bütçe Sisteminin AB'ye Uyumu", İstanbul, İKV Yayınları, Aralık 2004.

KARLUK, R. "Avrupa Birliği ve Türkiye", Beta Basım Yayım, 8.Baskı, İstanbul, 2005.

ÖZDEMİR, E., "Avrupa Birliği Bölgesel Politikası ve Genişleme", Ekonomik Forum, 2007.

R. Baldwin, C. Wyplosz, "The Economics of European Integration", New York, McGraw-Hill Companies, 2004.

SAMSUN, N., Merkezi ve Doğu Avrupa Ülkelerine Yönelik Avrupa Birliği Mali Yardımları ve Türkiye, Yayınlanmamış Yüksek Lisans Tezi Ankara Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü, Ankara, 2005.

ŞAHİN, R., "AB Bütçesi – Fonları ve Türkiye'nin Tam Üyeliği", DPT AB ile İlişkiler Müdürlüğü Yayınları, Ankara, 1998.

T.C. AB Bakanlığı Ekonomik ve Mali Politikalar Başkanlığı, "2014-2020 Avrupa Birliği Çok Yıllı Mali Çerçevesine İlişkin Bilgi Notu", Ankara, Şubat 2013.

TAŞ, R., "AB'nin Yeni Mali Çerçevesi (2007-2013)", Avrupa Çalışmaları Dergisi, Cilt 5 Sayı 3, Ankara, 2006.

YILDIZ, H. ve F. YARDIMCIOĞLU, "Türkiye'ye Yönelik AB Mali Yardımları ve Aday Ülkelerle Karşılaştırılması", Cumhuriyet Üniversitesi İktisadi ve İdari Bilimler Dergisi, Cilt 6, Sayı 2, 2005.

ZÜLFÜOĞLU, Ö., "Avrupa Birliği Bütçesi ve 2007-2013 Mali Perspektifi İzdüşümünde 2011 Bütçesi Üzerine Bir Değerlendirme" Çimento Endüstrisi İşverenleri Sendikası Dergisi, Cilt 25, Sayı 4, 2011.

International Journal of Social, Political and Economic Research

IJôSPER

ISSN: 2667-8810 (Online) https://www.ijosper.co.uk/



Original Article

Article No: 14_V1_I1_A3

TAFSIR IBN KATHIR: BIOGRAPHY OF WRITER AND SPECIALIST IN TAFSIR

SAEYD RASHED HASAN CHOWDURY *

*Researcher, Department of Islamic Studies, Faculty of Arts, University of Dhaka, Bangladesh.

saeydrashed.du1991@gmail.com

ORCID.ORG/0000-0002-3864-1378

Abstract:

Tafsir or Quran is the principal and first source of the shariah. Islamic jurists analyzed this source in extracting and introducing legal decisions. Alongside the Mufassir the Muhaddis (experts of Hadith) also exerted tremendous efforts in finding and extracting legal decisions. Although the Mufassir study within the scope of Quran, collecting Quran, managing compilation, scrutinizing the chain of narration and accuracy of the text. Abul fida Ismail ibn umar Ibn Kathir (707-774) was one of those who studied vigorously the application of Quran, in deriving shariah rulling. Along with compilation of Quran, illustration, he also palyed a vital role in deriving shariah rulling in the light of Quran. He authored many worthy books in this field too on top of that he was also a great scholar of Quran. This paper presents his invaluable contribution in deriving shariah ruling. Narrative method was applied in writing this paper. Many documents including the Quranic text and Hadith and major books in this field were also referred. The current paper ultimately evaluates the huge contribution of Abul fida Ismail ibn umar ibn kathir in the field of Shari 'ah ruling.

Key Words:

Abul fida Ismail ibn umar Ibn Kathir; Tafsir Ibn Kathir; Specialist in Tafsir; Contribution to the books.

তাফসীর ইব্ল কাছীর: পরিচ্য় ও তাফসীরের বিশেষত্ব

সাবসংক্ষেপ

ভাফাসীর বা কুরআন শরন্ট বিধি-বিধানের প্রধান ও প্রথম উৎস। ভাফসীরকারকগন শর'ন্ট বিধান উদ্ভাবনে এ উৎসকে প্রয়োগ করেছেন। মুফাচ্ছিরগণের পাশাপাশি যুগে যুগে অনেক মুহাদ্দিস ও শর'ন্ট বিধান বর্ণনা ও নিরূপণের প্রয়াস নিয়েছেন, যদিও মুফাচ্ছিরগণ মূলত কুরআন নিয়ে গবেষণা করেছেন। ভাঁরা কুরআন সংগ্রহ, সংকলন, কুরআনের ব্যাখ্যা–বিশ্লেষণ ইত্যাদি গুরুত্বপূর্ণ দায়িত্ব পালন করেছেন। যেসব মুফাচ্ছির ভাঁদের মূল কর্তব্যের পাশাপাশি কুরআনের আলোকে শরীয়তের বিধি-বিধান নির্ণয়ে সচেষ্ট হয়েছেন ভাঁদের অন্যতম আবুল ফিদা ইসমাইল ইবনে উমার ইবনে কাছীর (৭০৭-৭৭৪ খ্রি.)। কুরআনের সংকলন, ব্যখ্যা বিশ্লেষণের পাশাপাশি ভাঁর রচিত মৌলিক গ্রন্থসমূহে তিনি কুরআনের আলোকে অনেক গুরুত্বপূর্ণ বিষয়ে শর'ন্ট বিধি-বিধান নির্ণয়ে সবিশেষে ভূমিকা পালন করেন। ইলমে ভাফসীরে অনবদ্য অবদানের পাশাপাশি এ মহান মনীষী কুরআনের আলোকে শর'ন্ট বিধি-বিধান নির্ণয়ে যে অসামান্য অবদান রেখেছেন বক্ষ্যমাণ প্রবন্ধে সে সম্পর্কে সবিস্তার আলোচনা করা হয়েছে। প্রবন্ধটি রচনার ক্ষেত্রে পর্যালোচনা ও বর্ণনামূলক পদ্ধতি অবলম্বন করা হয়েছে। কুরআন, হাদীস এবং বিষয় সংশ্লিষ্ট মৌলিক গ্রন্থাবলি তথ্যসূত্র হিসেবে ব্যবহার করা হয়েছে। ইবন কাছীর রহ. কেবল কুরআনের উপর গবেষণা করেন নি; বরং তিনি শর'ন্ট বিধি- বিধান নির্ণয়েও যে বিশাল অবদান রেথেছেন, এ প্রবন্ধ তার-ই স্বাক্ষর বহন করবে।

মূল শব্দ: আবুল ফিদা ইসমাইল ইবনে উমার ইবনে কাছীর, তাফসীরে ইবনে কাছীর, তাফসীরের বৈশিষ্ট্য, ইব্ন কাছীর রচিত গ্রন্থমালা।

1. ভূমিকা

মানব সভ্যতার সূচনালয় হতে জ্ঞান-বিজ্ঞানের বিভিন্ন শাখা ও বিষয়ে বিকাশ সাধিত হয়ে আসছে। যুগে যুগে অনন্য সাধারন ব্যক্তি পণ্ডিত ও চিন্তাশীল গবেষকগণ নিরন্তর গবেষণা চালিয়ে আসছেন। এ বিষয়ের ধারাবাহিকতায় তাফসীর শান্ত্রের বিকাশে যে ক'জন মুফাসসীর গবেষক ও মনীষী ইতিহাসে স্থান করে নিয়েছেন, ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর তাদের মধ্যে অন্যতম। তিনি অক্লান্ত পরিশ্রম ও সাধনা, নিরবিচ্ছিন্ন অধ্যবসায় ও ঐকান্তিক অভিনিবেশের মাধ্যমে তাফসীর শান্ত্রের উন্নয়নে অতুলনীয় অবদান রেখে এক বিরাট দৃষ্টান্ত স্থাপন করেছেন। ইব্ন কাছীর এই প্রামাণ্য তথ্যবহুল, সর্বজন গৃহিত ও তাফসীরের মাধ্যমে আরবী ভাষা-ভাষীদের জন্য পবিত্র

কালামের সত্যিকারের রূপরেখা অতি স্বচ্ছ সাবলীল ভাষায় তুলে ধরেছেন তাঁর ক্ষুরধারার বলিষ্ট লেখনীর মাধ্যমে। এসব কারণেই এর অনবদ্যতা শ্রেষ্ঠকে সকল যুগের বিদগ্ধ মনীষীরা সমভাবে অকপটে এবং একবাক্যে স্বীকার করে নিয়েছেন। তাই, এই পৃথিবীর প্রায় প্রতিটি মুসলিম অধ্যুষিত দেশে, সকল ধর্মীয় প্রতিষ্ঠানে এমনকি ধর্মনিরপেক্ষ শিক্ষায়তনের গ্রন্থাকারে ও এটি বহুল পঠিত, সুপরিচিত।

2. নাম ও বংশ প্রিচ্য

তাঁর নাম ইসমাইল, আবুল ফিদা তাঁর কুনিয়াত বা ডাকনাম এবং ইমামুদ্দীন তাঁর উপাধি। সুতরাং, তাঁর সাঁজরা ই নাসাব বা কুলজীনামা সহ পুরোনাম ও বংশ পরিচয় হচ্ছে নিম্নরূপ: ''আবুল ফিদা ইমামুদীন ইসমাইল ইব্ন উমার ইব্ন কাছীর ইব্ন জাউ ইব্ন কাছীর যারা আল-কারশী আল বাসারী আদ দিমাশকী। কিন্তু, সাধারণ্যে তিনি ইব্ন কাছীর নামে সমধিক পরিচিত''। বস্তৃতঃ আল–বাসরী নামক তার এই নিসবতটি হচ্ছে তাঁর শিক্ষা-দীক্ষা বা তালীম ও তারবিয়াত বাচক উপাধি। ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর ছিলেন এক সুশিক্ষিত, জ্ঞানী ও বিদ্ধান পরিবারের সুসন্তান। তাঁর সুযোগ্য পিতা শাইখ আবু হাফস শিহাবুদীন উমার (রঃ) সে অঞ্চলের খতিব পদে অধিষ্ঠিত ছিলেন। তাঁর বড় ভাই আব্দুল ওয়াহাব (রঃ) ছিলেন সে যুগের খ্যাতনামা আলেম, হাদীস বেতা ও তাফসীরবিদ। এমনকি য্য়নুদিন ও বদরুদীন নামক তাঁর পুত্রদ্বয় ও ছিলেন সেকালের বিরাট খ্যাতিসম্পন্ন হাদীস বেত্তা।

According to Encyclopaedia of Islam, "His full name was abul fida Ismail ibn umar ibn kathir with the honorary title of imad ad din pillar of the faith. He was born in mijdal, a village on the outskirts of the city of busra to the east of damacus. Syria in the about A H 707 (AD 1300/1) He was taught by ibn taymiyya and al dhahab"²

ইসমাইল ইবন উমার ইবন কাছীর ইবন দু, ইবন দাবা আল কুরাশী আল বুসরাবী আদ-দিমাশকী, কুন্য়াত: আবুল ফিদা, উপাধি: ইমামুদীন। সাধারণত পিতামহের নামে পরিচিত, ঐতিহাসিক, তাফসীরকারক ও মুহাদিস হিসেবে বিখ্যাত³।

¹ ড. মোহাম্মদ মুজিবুর রহমান (অনুবাদক),*তাফসীর ইবন কাছীর*, ঢাকা, হুসাইন আল মাদানী প্রকাশনী, ৮ম সংস্করণ, ২০০৮ খৃ:, ১ম থণ্ড, পৃ. ১

² Encyclopedia of Islam, voll. 2, p. 46

³ *ইসলামিক বিশ্বকোষ*, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন সম্পাদিত, ৫ম সংস্করণ, ১৯৯৫ খৃ:, ২য় থণ্ড, পৃ. ১৮৫

قال علامة ابن العماد –هو اسماعيل بن عمربن كثير بن ضوء بن زرع- الشيخ الامام العلامة عماد الدين ابو الفداء ابن الشيخ شهاب الدين ابي حفص القرشي البصري الدمشقي البصري الشافعي المعروف بابن كثير 4

3. জন্ম ও জন্মস্থান

ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর সিরীয় প্রদেশের প্রসিদ্ধ শহর বসরার অন্তর্গত মাজল নামক মহল্লায় ৭০০ হিজরিতে জন্মগ্রহণ করেন। তাঁর ইন্তেকালের সন তারিখ সম্মন্ধে কোন মতানৈক্য নেই বটে, কিন্তু তাঁর জন্মের তারিখ সন নিয়ে তাঁর জীবনীকারদের মাঝে বেশ একটা মতদ্বৈতা লহ্ষ্য করা যায়। আল্লামা জালালুদ্দীন সুয়ূতী তার যাইলু তাজকীরাতুল হুফফাজ, আল্লামা কাজী সাওকানী আল বাদরুত তালি গ্রন্থে, হাকিম শাইখ শামসুদ্দীন জাহাবী (মৃতঃ ৭৪৮ হিঃ- ১৩৪৭খ্রীঃ) স্বীয় তাজকীরাতুল্ হুফফাজ গ্রন্থের উপক্রমণিকায়, নওয়াব সিদ্দিক হাসান খান ভূপালী (মৃতঃ ১৩০৭ হিঃ১৮৮৯ খ্রীঃ) তাঁর আবজাদুল উলুম গ্রন্থে ৭০১ হিজরি কিংবা তদুর্চ্ছের্ব বলে লিপিবদ্ধ করেছেন। যাই হোক, ইব্ন কাছীরের জন্মের সময়ে তাঁর পিতা সেই অঞ্চলের খতীবে আজম পদে অধিষ্ঠিত ছিলেন, একখা আগেই উল্লেখ করেছি''5। ناماد: ولد سنة 701 هـ 1301 م في قرية مجديل من اعمال المشق و عاش الدمشق الدمشق المشق و عاش الدمشق

আখতার ফারুক বলেন, ইব্ন কাছীর ৭০০ হিজরী মোতাবেক ১৩০০ খ্রিস্টাব্দে সিরিয়ার বসরা শহরে এক সম্ভ্রান্ত শিক্ষিত পরিবারে জন্ম গ্রহণ করেন⁷।

ولد في سوريا سنة 707 ه كما ذكر ذلك في كتابه البدايه و النهاية-و كان مولوده بقريه مجدل من اعمال بصري من منطقة سهل حوران درعا حاليا في جنوب دمشق8

4. পবিবাব পবিচিতি

তাঁর পিতা শাইথ আবু হাফস শিহাবুদ্দীন উমর সেথানকার থতিবে আজম পদে অধিষ্ঠিত ছিলেন⁹। তাঁর জ্যেষ্ঠ দ্রাতা শাইথ আব্দুল ওহাব সামসময়িক কালের একজন খ্যাতনামা আলিম, হাদিসবেত্তা ও তাফসীরকারক ছিলেন,

ં ગાંગ રૂ

⁴ আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, *দাযারাতু্য জাহাব*, মিসর, মাকতাবাহ-আল নাহদা আল-মিসরীয়্যা প্রকাশনী, ১৯৮৮ খৃ:, পৃ. ৮৮

⁵ ড. মুজিবুর রহমান, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ২

⁶ আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৮৯

⁷ ড. আথতার ফারুক (অনুবাদক), *তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর*, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন, ৫ম সংস্করণ, ২০০১ থৃ:, ১ম থণ্ড, পৃ. ৮৮

⁸ আবুল ফিদা ইমামুদ্দীন ইসমাইল ইব্ন কাছীর, *আল বিদায়াহ ওয়ান নিহায়াহ*, মিসর, দার আল ইলম লিল মালায়িয়ীন প্রকাশনী, ৭ম সংস্করণ, ১৯৯৪ খৃ:, ২য় খণ্ড, পৃ. ৯৮

⁹ ড. আথতার ফারুক, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১১

তাঁর দুই পুত্র জয়নুদিন ও বদরুদিন সেই যুগের প্রখ্যাত হাদিসবেত্তা ছিলেন, মোটকখা তাঁর গোটা পরিবারই ছিল সেকালের জ্ঞান জগতের উঙ্ঘল জ্যোতিষ্ক স্বরূপ।

5. শিষ্কা জীবন

তিন কিংবা ঢার বছর ব্যুসের সময়ে শিশু ইব্ন কাছীরের স্লেহময় পিতা শিহাবুদীন উমার ৭০৩ হিজরিতে ইন্তিকাল করেন। তখন তাঁর জ্যেষ্ঠ সহোদর শাইখ আব্দুল ওয়াহাব তাঁর প্রতিপালনের দায়িত্বভার গ্রহণ করেন। ''শৈশবে পিতৃ-বিয়োগের তিন বছর পর ৭০৬ হিজরিতে ভাইয়ের সঙ্গে তিনি তৎকালীন ধন-ঐশ্বর্যের স্বপ্নপুরী বাগদাদ নগরীতে উপনীত হন। তিনি জ্যেষ্ঠ ভাইয়ের কাছে প্রাথমিক শিক্ষা সমাপন করে ফিকাহ শাস্ত্রের অধ্যয়ন শুরু করেন, অতঃপর শাইথ বুরহানুদীন ইবরাহীম বিন আব্দুর রহমান ফাজারী এবং শাইথ কামালুদীন ইব্ন কাজী সাহবার কাছে ফিকাহ শাস্ত্রের পাঠ সমাপ্ত করেন^{''10}।

قال الحافظ ابن كثير كنت اذ ذاك صغيرا ابن ثلاث سنين او نحوها -ثم تحولنا من بعد سنة 707 الى دمشق صحبة كمال الدين عبد الوهاب و قال :و قد كان لنا شقيقا و بنا رفيقا شفوقا و قد تاخرت و فا ته الى سنة خمسين 650 فاشتعلت على يديه في العلم فيسر الله تعالى فيه ما يسر - و سهل منه ما سهل 11

According to Encyclopedia of Islam: He was taught by Ibn Taymiyyah and al dhahabi, upon completion of his studies he obtained his first official appointment in 1341. When he joined as inquisitorial commission formed to determine certain questions of heresy. He married the daughter of al mizzi, one of the formed Syrian scholars of the period, which gave him access to the scholarly elite. 12

তিনি বড ভাইয়ের কাছে প্রাথমিক শিক্ষা সমাপ্ত করে ফিকাহ শাস্ত্রের অধ্যয়ন শুরু করেন। অতঃপর খ্যাতনামা হাদীস শাস্ত্রবিদ মুসনিদুদ দুনিয়া রিহলাতুল আফাক ইবন শাহনা হাজাজের কাছে তিনি হাদীস শাস্ত্র অধ্যয়ণ করেন। তখনকার দিনে একটা চিরাচরিত নিয়ম ছিল যে, কোন শিক্ষার্থী এক নির্দিষ্ট শাস্ত্রতে ব্যুৎপত্তি ও পারদর্শিতা অর্জন করতে চাইলে সেই শাস্ত্রের কোন একখানি সংক্ষিপ্ত পুস্তুক বাধ্যতামূলকভাবে কন্ঠস্থ করতে হতো। এ কারনে তিনি শাইখ আবু ইশহাক সিরাজী কৃত আত তাসবীহ ফী ফুরুইস শাফীয়াহ নামক গ্রন্থটি আদ্যোপান্ত কন্ঠস্থ করে ৭১৮ হিজরিতে তা শুনিয়ে দেন। উসুলুল ফিকহের গ্রন্থাবলীর মধ্যে তিনি আল্লামা ইবন হাজিব মালিক (মৃতঃ ৬৪৬ হিঃ ১২৪৮ খ্রীঃ) কৃত মুখতাসার নামক পুস্তুকটি মুখস্থ করেন। এ গ্রন্থের শারহা

¹² Encyclopedia of Islam, ibid, P. 121

¹⁰ নওয়াব সিদ্দিক হাসান থাঁ, *আব্ধাদুল উলুম*, বৈরুত, সিদ্দীকী প্রেস ভূপাল, ১৮৭৮ খৃ:, ৩য় থণ্ড, পৃ. ৭৮০

[া] ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর, প্রাগুক্ত,পৃ. ৭

লেখক আল্লামা শামসুদীন মাহমুদ ইব্ন আব্দুর রহমান ইস্পাহানীর কাছে গিয়ে ও উসুলুল ফিকাহ এর গ্রন্থমালা অন্যন্য মনে অধ্যয়ণ করেন। قال جلال الدین السیوتی

و لما بلغ ابن كثير السابعة من عمره – ارتحل بصحبة لاخيه الشقيق عبد الوهاب الي مدينة دمشق التي كانةموءل العلماء و

- وحاضرة العلم – و مركز الحضارة – و ينبوع العطاء و محط الانظار – و مرابع المعرفة التي يقد الاليها العلماء و

الطلاب من كل هدب و صوب 13

হাদীস শাস্ত্র অধ্যয়ন সম্পর্কে আল্লামা জালালুদ্দিন সুমূতি বলেন, হাজ্ঞার এবং তাঁর সমগ্রেনীর মুহাদ্দিসদের কাছ থেকে তিনি হাদিস শ্রবণ করেন। খ্যাতনামা হাদীস শাস্ত্রবিদ মুসনিদুদ-দুনিয়া রিহ লাতুল আফাক ইব্ন শাহনা হাজ্ঞাজের কাছে তিনি হাদিস শাস্ত্র অধ্যয়ন করেছেন। মিসর থকে ইমাম আবুল ফাতাহ দারুসী, ইমাম আলী ওয়ালী এবং ইউসুফ খুঁতনি প্রমূখ সামসময়িক মুহাদ্দিসরা তাকে হাদিস অধ্যাপনার অনুমতি দান করেন। According to Encyclopaedia of Islam, "He learned from great scholars such as ibn asker. Ishaq ibn yahya al amudi and the shaykh ul islam ibn taymiyyah who was extremely close to him, he also studied under various other sheikhs who gave him permission in fiqh and hadith" 14.

قال الحافظ ابن حجر – قد دمشق وله نحو سبع سنين سنة ست و سبعما ءة مع اخيه بعد موت ابيه و حفظ التنبيه – و عرضه سنة ثماني عشرة – و حفظ مختصر ابن الحاجب – ثم صاهر المزي و صحب ابن التيمية – و قرء اصل علي الاصبهاني – و الف في صغرة احكام التنبيه – 15

6. শিষ্কক মণ্ডলী

মুহাদিস হাজার ছাড়া তাঁর সামসময়িক যেসব মুহাদিসের কাছ থেকে ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর একাগ্রচিত্তে হাদীস শাস্ত্র অধ্যয়ন করেছিলেন, তাদের মধ্যে নিন্মোক্ত মনীষীদের নাম বিশেষভাবে উল্লেক্ষ্যঃ বাহাউদিন বিন কাসিম বিন মুজাফফর বিন আসাকির (মৃত ১৩২৩ খ্রীঃ), শাইখ যাহিরিয়া আফীফুদিন ইসহাক বিন ইয়াহিয়া আল আমিদী (মৃত ১৩২৪ খ্রীঃ),বদরুদিন মুহাম্মদ ইব্ন ইবরাহীম ইব্ন সুয়াইদি (মৃত ১৩১১ খ্রীঃ), ঈসা ইবনুল মুতিম, মুহাম্মদ বিন যারাদ, হাফিজ জামালুদিন ইউসুফ আল মন্ধ্রী সাফল (মৃত ১৩৪১ খ্রীঃ), আল্লামা হাফিয শামসুদিন আজ যাহাবী (মৃতঃ ১৩২৭ খ্রীঃ), তাকিউদীন আহমদ ইব্ন তাইমিয়া আল হাররানী (মৃত ১৩২৭ খ্রীঃ), আল্লামা ইমামুদিন মুহাম্মদ ইব্ন আস শীরাষী (মৃত ১৩৪৮ খ্রীঃ)¹⁶। ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর উপরিউক্ত মুহাদিসদের মধ্যে

Encyclopedia of Islam, fold, p. 121 ¹⁵ হাফেজ ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানী, *আনবাউল উমর বি আবনায়িল উমর*, করাচী, তাশ কুবরা জাদাহ প্রকাশনী, ১৮৯৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ৩৯

_

¹³ আল্লামা জালাল উদ্দিল সুয়ুতি, *আয যাইলু তাজকিরাতুল হুফফায*, দিমাশক, দিমাশক প্রেস, ১৯৭৮ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২৮

¹⁴ Encyclopedia of Islam, ibid, p. 121

¹⁶ ড. মুজিবুর রাহমান, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৫

যার কাছ থেকে সবচেয়ে বেশী শিক্ষা দিক্ষার সুযোগ লাভ করে উপকৃত হয়েছিলেন তন্মধ্যে তাহযিবুল কামাল প্রণেতা সিরীয় দেশীয় মুহাদিস আল্লামা হাফিজ জামালুদিন ইউসুফ ইব্ন আন্দুর রহমান মন্জী শাফেরী বিশেষভাবে উল্লেখের দাবীদার।

অবশ্য পরবর্তী কালে তাঁর প্রিয়তমা কন্যার সঙ্গে হাফিজ ইব্ন কাছীর শুভ পরিণয় সুত্রে আবদ্ধ হন। এই শুভ বন্ধনের অবশ্যম্ভাবী ফলশ্রুতি হিসেবে এই ওস্তাদ সাগরিদের পবিত্র সম্বন্ধ আরও ঘনিষ্ঠ-নিবিঢ় এবং সুদূঢ় হয়। সুতরাং, এই শ্রদ্ধাস্পদ মহান শিক্ষকের অন্তহীন স্নেহ মমতার ছত্র ছায়ায় বহুদিন পর্যন্ত অবস্থান করে তিনি পূর্ণমাত্রায় উপকৃত হয়েছিলেনএবং এই সুবর্ণ সুযোগের তিনি সদ্ব্যবহার করেছিলেন, বেশ কিছুকাল ধরে তিনি এই শ্রদ্ধেয় শিক্ষক তথা স্নেহময় শ্বশুরের সাহচর্য ও সান্নিধ্য লাভ করে তিনি তাঁর শ্রেষ্ঠ অবদান তাহযিবুল কামাল ও অন্যান্য গ্রন্থাবলী তাঁর কাছ থেকে নিষ্ঠার সঙ্গে শ্রবণ করেন। এভাবেই তিনি পবিত্র হাদীসের পঠন ও অধ্যয়নে সম্পূর্ণতা অর্জন করতে সমর্থ হন। এ প্রসঙ্গে আল্লামা জালালুদ্দিন সুয়ূতি বলেন, হাফিজ জামালুদ্দিন মন্ধ্রীর সান্নিধ্য দীর্ঘ দিন অবস্থান করে তিনি বিপুল ব্যুৎপত্তি ও পারদর্শিতা অর্জন করেন¹⁷।

অনুরূপভাবে শাইখুল ইসলাম হাফিজ ইব্ন তাইমিয়ার সাল্লিধ্যে অবস্থান করে তাঁর কাছ থেকে ও তিনি বিভিন্ন বিষয়ে জ্ঞানার্জন করেন। হাফিজ ইব্ন হাজার আসকালী বলেন, মিসর থেকে ইমাম আবুল ফাতাহ দাবুসীম ইমাম আলী ওয়ানই এবং ইউসুফ খুতনী প্রমুখ সামসময়িক মুহাদ্মিসরা তাকে হাদিস অধ্যাপনার স্পষ্ট অনুমতি দান করেন, এভাবে মহামতি ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর মুসলিম জগতের বিভিন্ন শিক্ষায়তনে বিভিন্ন উস্তাদের কাছ থেকে হাদীস তাফসীর, তারিথের প্রায় সকল শাখায় এমন অনুসন্ধিৎসা ও নিষ্ঠার সঙ্গে জ্ঞান অর্জন করেন যে, সারা মুসলিম জাহানের আহলে সুল্লাহ এবং অন্যান্যদের কাছে ও অপ্রতিদ্বন্দ্বী ইমাম হওয়ার গৌরবময় আসন অলংকৃত করতে সক্ষম হন। তাঁর অপরিত্ত্ব ও অন্যন্য সাধারন শাস্ত্র, জ্ঞান-পিপাসা, অসাধারণ ধীশক্তি, অপরিসীম বিদ্যাবেত্তা ও সর্বতোমুখী প্রতিভার ক্ষুরন ঘটে শৈশব এবং কৈশোর থেকেই। হাদীস ও তাফসীর ছাড়া ফিকাহ, উসুলে ফিকাহ, আরবী ভাষা ও সাহিত্য, তারীথে ইসলাম প্রভৃতিতে ও তিনি সমান দক্ষতা ও ব্যুৎপত্তি অর্জন করতে সমর্থ হয়েছিলেন।

قال العلامة نصير الدين الباني -و من شيوخه ابن التيمية المزي اعجب به ابن كثير و سار علي درية و قد ذكره مرارا في تاريخه - و الامام المزي الحافظ الكبير صاحب تهذيب الكمال في اسماء الرجال و تحفة الاشراف بمعرفة الاطراف و قد تتامزعليه ابن كثير ثم صاره - ثم تبعه في جامع المسانيد و السنن الهاديلا قوم سنن 18

-

¹⁷ আল্লামা জালালুদিন সুয়তি, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১২৮

¹⁸ আল্লামা নাছির উদ্দিন আলবানী, *ইমাম ইবন কাছীর*, রিয়াদ, দার-আল কুতুব আল-ইলমীইয়্যাহ, ১৯৭৭ খৃ:, ১ম খণ্ড, পৃ. 😉

আল্লামা হাফিয ইবনুল ইমাদ হাম্বালী ইব্ন হাবীব থেকে উদ্ধৃতি দিয়ে বলেন, ইসলামের ইতিহাসে, হাদীস ও তাফসীর বিষয়ক জ্ঞান বিজ্ঞানের বিশাল রাজত্ব তাঁর কাছে গিয়েই শেষ সীমান্তে উপনীত হয়েছে¹⁹। আবুল মাহাসিন জামালুদ্দিন ইউসুফ বিন সাইফুদ্দীন বিন তাগরীবিরদী (মৃঃ ৮৭৪ হিঃ- ১৪৬৯ খৃঃ)বলেন, হাদীস, তাফসীর, ফিকাহ এবং আরবী ভাষা ও সাহিত্য তাঁর অগাধ জ্ঞান ছিল।

قال شيخ محمد عبد الرزاق الهمزة و لقد كان للامام ابن كثير حياة علمية حافلة بالجهد في التحصيل و التصنيف في عصر مملوء بالاكابر من علماء النقل و العقل كما ستقف على ذالك²⁰

হাফিয শামসুদ্দিন আয-জাহবী স্থীয় তাজকিরাতুল হুফফায নামক অনবদ্য গ্রন্থের পরিশিষ্টে বিশিষ্ট হাদিস, অধ্যাপক মণ্ডলীর পরিচয় প্রদান কালে ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীরের বিস্তারিত বিবরণ প্রদান করেছেন। অতঃপর হাফিজ জালালুদ্দীন সুয়ূতি স্থীয় জাইলু তাজকিরাতুল হুফফায গ্রন্থে ইব্ন কাছীরের বিস্তৃত জীবন কথা লিপিবদ্ধ করেন এবং আল্লামা সালবুল মাহাসিন হুসাইন ও তাঁর ভূয়সী প্রশংসা করেন। قال علامة الوين يوسف و كان له اطلاع عظيم في الحديث و التفسير و الفقه و العربية المعادية و العربية و العربية و العربية و العربية و العربية المعادية و العربية المعادية و العربية المعادية و العربية المعادية و العربية المعادية و العربية المعادية و العربية و العربية و العربية المعادية و العربية و العربية المعادية و العربية و الع

7. ইমাম ইব্ৰ কাছীবেব প্ৰতি সামসময়িক মৰীষীদেব শ্ৰদ্ধা ৰিবেদৰ

একবার হাফিজ যাইলুদীল ইরাকীকে জিজ্ঞাসা করা হয়েছিলঃ ইমাম মগলতাই, ইমাম ইব্ল কাছীর, ইব্ল রাফে, হাফেয হুসাইলী এই চারজন সামসময়িক মলীষীদের কে শ্রেষ্ঠ? আল্লামা হাফিয যাইলুদীল ইরাকী এই প্রশ্নের উত্তরে বলেন, এদের মধ্যে বংশ পরস্পরায় জ্ঞানে সবচেয়ে অভিজ্ঞতা সম্পন্ন হচ্ছেন ইমাম ইব্ল কাছীর, আর হাদীস শাস্ত্রের অনুসন্ধান বিশারদ এবং বিভিন্ন প্রকারের হাদীস সম্পর্কে অতি সুস্কা দৃষ্টি সম্পন্ন হচ্ছেল ইব্ল রাফে এবং স্বীয় উস্তায, সামসময়িক মুহাদিস ও হাদিসের বর্ণনা সূত্র সম্পর্কে অধিক অবহিত হলেন হাফিয হুসাইলী দিমাশকী। হাফিয শামসুদিন আজ যাহবী তাঁর মুজামুল মুখতাস এবং তাজকেরাতুল হুফফাজ নামক গ্রন্থন্বয়ে বলেন, ইব্ল কাছীর একজন খ্যাতলামা মুফতি, বিজ্ঞ মুহাদিস আইল অভিজ্ঞ ফিকাহ শাস্ত্রবিদ, বিচম্ফণ তাফসীরের এবং রিজাল শাস্ত্রে বিশেষ পারদর্শী।

©Chowdury, Saeyd Rashed Hasan, (2014), "Tafsir Ibn Kathir: Biography of Writer and Specialist in Tafsir"

¹⁹ হাফিজ ইবনুল ইমাদ, *জও্য়াহিরুল মজিয়াহ ফী তাবাকাতিল হালাফীয়া*, হায়দারাবাদ ডেকান, দায়িরাতুল মা'আরিফ প্রেস, ১৩৩২ হি:, পৃ. ১৩৯

²⁰ শাইথ আব্দুর রাযযাক আল হামযাহ, *আল বায়িছুল হাদিস*, আল আজহার বিশ্ববিদ্যাল্য়, ১৪০২ হি: /১৯৮২ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২১

²¹ আল্লামা আবুল মাহাসিন জামাল উদ্দিন ইউসুফ, আল মানহালুল সাফি আল মুসতাউফি, বৈরুত, আলী আল-আজহার, ১৩৬০ হি:, পৃ. ৩২

হাদিসের মতল সম্পর্কে তাঁর অভিনিবেশ ছিল উল্লেখযোগ্য। তিনি হাদিসের তাখরিজ বের করেছেন এবং আলোচনা পর্যালোচনা করেছেন, গ্রন্থরাজি রচনা করেছেন এবং প্রত্যেক ক্ষেত্রেই চরম উৎকর্ষ সাধন করেছেন²²। হাফিয হুসাইনী এবং আল্লামা জালালুদিন সুমূতি তাদের নিজ নিজ গ্রন্থে ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর সম্পর্কে মন্তব্য করতে গিয়ে বলেন, তিনি হাদিসের বিশিষ্ট অধ্যাপক, হাদিস শাস্ত্রের হাফিয প্রখ্যাত আলিম এবং ইমাম বক্তৃতায় সুনিপুন, বহুগুণ এবং উৎকর্ষের অধিকারী। আল্লামা শাইথ ইবনুল ইমাদ হাম্বালী ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর কে আল হাফিযুল কাবীর বা মহান হাফিয অর্খাৎ কুরআনের শ্রেষ্ঠ বলে আখ্যায়িত করেন²³। অনুরুপভাবে তাঁর খ্যাতনামা প্রিয় শিষ্য আল্লামা হাফিয ইবনুল হন্ধি স্থীয় শ্রদ্ধাম্পদ উস্তাদ ইব্ন কাছীর সম্পর্কে অভিমত জানাতে গিয়ে বলেন, ঠা এটা থিবাল মহাল হাফিত্র বিভাগে ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আল্লামা হাফি হিল হালি হিল হালি ও আঁহুল ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালি ও আঁহুল মহালিও বিলেন, এইন এইন মহালিও বিলেন, এইন মহালিও বিলেন, এইন মহালিও বিলেন মাইলিও কিন্তু আঁহুল মহালিও বিলেন মাইলিও বিলেন মহালিও বিলেন ম

''আমরা যেসব হাদীস শাস্ত্রজ্ঞ কে পেয়েছি তন্মধ্যে তিনি হাদিসের মতন বা মূল অংশ সম্পর্কে শ্রেষ্ঠ শ্রুতিধর এবং দোষ ক্রটির ব্যাপারে হাদিস রিজাল শাস্ত্র জ্ঞানে ও বিশুদ্ধ দুর্বল হাদিস নির্ধারণে ছিলেন সবার চেয়ে অভিজ্ঞ। তাঁর সামসাময়িক উলামা ও উস্তাদবৃন্দ সবাই তাঁর এই মান মর্যাদার কথা এক বাক্যে স্বীকার করেন''। তাঁর কাছে আমি বহুবার যাতায়াত করেছি, তবু ও একথা স্বীকার করতে দ্বিধা নেই যে, যতবারই আমি তাঁর খিদমতে গিয়ে উপনীত হয়েছে কোন না কোন বিষয়ে তাঁর কাছে জ্ঞান লাভে ধন্য ও কৃতার্থ হয়েছি।

قال علامة حافظ ابن نصير الدين الدمشقي: الشيخ الامام العلامة الحافظ عماد الدين ثقة المحدثين عمدة الموؤخين علم المفسرين 25

আল্লামা হাফিয ইমামুদীন ইব্ন কাছীর ছিলেন মুহাদিস গণের নির্ভর ঐতিহাসিক অবলম্বন এবং তাফসীর বিদ্যা বিশারদদের উন্নত ধ্বজা। হাফিয ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানি বলেন, হাদীসের মতন বা মৌল অংশ এবং রিজাল বা চরিত অভিধান শান্ত্রের পঠন-পাঠনে ও অধ্যয়নে তিনি সব সময় নিমন্ন থাকতেন। তাঁর উপস্থিত বুদ্ধি ও স্মৃতি শক্তি ছিল অত্যন্ত প্রথর আর তিনি রসিকতা প্রিয় ছিলেন, জীবদ্দশায় তাঁর গ্রন্থরাজী চারদিকে ব্যাপকভাবে ছড়িয়ে পড়ে। প্রখ্যাত হাদিসবেত্তা আল্লামা যাহিদ বিন হাসান আল কাওসারী ছিলেন কায়রুর একজন খ্যাতিনামা আলেম ও মুহাদিস এবং উসমানী শাসনামলের একজন উচ্চ পদস্থ রাজকর্মচারী। তিনি ও এ প্রসঙ্গে বলেন,

²² হাফিয শামসুদ্দিন আয-যাহাবী, *তাযকিরাতুল হুফফায*, হায়দারাবাদ, দারিয়াতুল মাআরিফ প্রেস, ১৩৫৭ হি:, পৃ. ১৩০৬

²³ আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৮৮

²⁴ মাওলানা মুহাম্মদ হুসাইন বাসুদেবপুরী, ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর শীর্ষক প্রবন্ধ, *মাসিক তরজামাতুল হাদিস*, করাচী, করাচী ডেকান প্রেস, ১৯৯৫ খৃ:, ১১ খণ্ড, ১ম সংখ্যা, পৃ. ৩২

²⁵ আল্লামা ইব্ল নাসীরুদ্দীন দিমাসকী, *আর রাদুল ওয়াফির*, দিমাশক, ওফাইয়াত আল আইয়ান প্রেস, ১৩৯৮ হি:, পৃ. ২৬৯

হাফ্যি ইব্ন কাছীর যদিও হাদিসের মতন মুখস্থ করার ব্যাপারে ছিলেন বেশী অভ্যস্ত, তবু ও তাঁর কাছ থেকে এটা কোন দিনই প্রত্যাশা করা যায় না যে, তিনি রাবিদের স্তর সমূহে ভেদ নীতির কোন ধার পাতেন না। অবশ্য তিনি এ কাজটি ভালভাবে করতেন।

তিনি রাবী বা বর্ণনা কারীদের অবস্থার পরিপ্রেক্ষিত আলি ও নাজিলের মাঝে পার্থক্য অবশ্যই করতেন। এই ভেদ নীতি ও পার্থক্যের ব্যাপারটি তো ঐ সব মুহাদিসের কাছে ও গোপন থাকে না যারা ইব্ন কাছীর অপেক্ষা অনেক নিম্ন স্তুরের। আর বিশেষ করে শাইথ জামাল ইউসুফ ইবনুজ যাকী আল মিয়মী এর শিষ্যত্ব গ্রহণ যথন বহুদিন ধরে তিনি তাঁর কাছে অবস্থান করেছিলেন এবং তাঁর তাহ্যীবুল কামাল নামক গ্রন্থটি নিষ্ঠা ও উল্লেখযোগ্য পরিবর্ধন সহ সম্পাদনা করে প্রকাশ করে ছিলেন। ঐতিহাসিকগণও ইব্ন কাছীর এর প্রতিভা,স্মৃতি শক্তি এবং অগাধ জ্ঞানের গভীরতা সম্পর্কে ভূয়সী প্রশংসা করেন। এ প্রসঙ্গে আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ বলেন, এর্লাড

''তার উপস্থিত বৃদ্ধি ও ধীশক্তি ছিল অত্যন্ত প্রথর। কোন বস্তুকে একবার মুখস্থ করে নিলে তাঁর বিস্মরণ থুব কমই হতো। আর তিনি মেধাবী ও কম ছিলেন না। আরবী সাহিত্য ও তিনি সৃষ্টি করেছেন এবং মধ্যম পর্যায়ের কবিতা ও তিনি রচনা করতেন''।

৪. শিক্ষা ও ফতও্য়া প্রদান, আল্লাহ্ব গুণগান ও বৃসিকতা

ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর তার সারাটি জীবন অতিবাহিত করেছেন গ্রন্থরচনা, ফতও্য়া প্রদান এবং অধ্যাপনার মহান পেশায়, তাঁর শ্রদ্ধেয় শিক্ষক আল্লামা হাফিয শামসুদিন যাহাবীর ইন্তেকালের পর তিনি দিমাশকের শুপ্রসিদ্ধ উন্মু সাহিল ও তানকিজিয়াহ শিক্ষায়তনে হাদীস অধ্যাপনার মহান পদে অভিষিক্ত হন। এ সময়ে তিনি ঘন্টার পর ঘন্টা ধরে আল্লাহর গুণগান ও যিকর আযকারে মাশগুল থাকতেন²⁷। জীবনে তিনি এত ফতওয়া প্রদান করেছেন যে, সেগুলো পৃথক গ্রন্থাকারে সংকলিত হতে পারে। এ প্রসঙ্গে আল্লামা ইব্ল হাবিব বলেন, المام ذي التسبيح و التهليل তিনি সদা প্রফুল্ল চিত্ত, খোশ মেজাজ ও খোশ আথলাক ব্যক্তি ছিলেন, কথা বার্তা ও আলাপ আলোচনার সময়ে তিনি সরস ও সৃল্যবান উপমা ও দৃষ্টান্ত ইত্যাদি ব্যবহার করতেন।

আল্লামা হাফিম ইব্ন হাজার আসক্লানী তাঁর কিছুটা সমালোচনা²⁸করলে ও বারবারই তাঁর ভূয়সী প্রশংসায় মুখর হয়েছেন এবং তাকে হুসনুল মুফাকাহা বা উত্তম রসিক বলে আখ্যায়িত করেছেন। হাফিয যাইনুদিন ইরাকী

²⁶ আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১৯৭

²⁷ নওয়াব সিদ্দীক হাসান খাঁ ভূপালী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ২৩৪

²⁸ মোল্লা কাতিব চালপী, *কাশফু্য্যনুন*, বৈরুত, দার আল ফিকর, ১৪০২ হি: /১৯৮২ থৃ:, পৃ. ১২১

ছিলেন হাদীস শাস্ত্রে আল্লামা শাইখ আলাউদ্দিন ইব্ন তুর্কমানির বিশিষ্ট শাগরিদ এবং তাঁর লালিত পালিত মন্ত্রশিষ্য। তিনি শাইখুল ইসলাম ইমাম তাকী উদ্দিন সুবকীর শিক্ষাকেন্দ্রে যথন উপস্থিত হন, তথন শাইখুল ইসলাম তাকে সমাদরে সসম্মানে বসিয়ে এবং উপস্থিত সবার সঙ্গে পরিচয় করিয়ে তাঁর বিদ্যাবত্তার ভূয়সী প্রশংসা করেন, তথন ইমাম ইব্ন আসির বলেন, আমার তো মনে হয় যে, ইব্ন আব্বাস (রাঃ) কর্তৃক বর্ণিত রৌদ্র তপ্ত পানি দ্বারা উজু করার যে নিষেধাজ্ঞা রয়েছে, ইনি সেই হাদীসটিই হয়তো খুজে বের করতে পারবেন না।

9. কাব্য চর্চায় ইব্ল কাচ্চীর (বৃঃ)

ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর (রঃ) কাব্য রচনায় ছিলেন পারঙ্গম ও সিদ্ধহস্ত। তাঁর স্ব-রচিত কবিতামালা তাঁর বিভিন্ন গ্রন্থাবলীর পৃষ্ঠায় বিচ্ছিন্ন ভাবে পরিদৃষ্ট হয়। নিম্নে তাঁর কবিতা থেকে কয়েকটি চরণ উদ্বৃত করছিঃ

''দিনের পর দিন অতিতের অন্তহীন পথে বিলীন হতে চলেছে, আজ আমরা দিব্য চক্ষে দেখতে পাচ্ছি যে, আমাদেরকে ক্রমান্বয়ে মৃত্যুর দিকে ঠেলে নিয়ে যাওয়া হচ্ছে''।

''অতিক্রান্ত জীবন যৌবন কোন দিনই ফিরে পাবার ন্ম, আর এই ক্লেদ্যুক্ত বার্ধক্য ও আদৌ ও দূরে সরার ন্মূ²⁹''।

10. আল্লামা ইব্ন ভাইমিয়াব সঙ্গে বিশেষ সম্পর্ক

ইব্ন কাছীরের শ্বনাম থ্যাত শ্রদ্ধেয় শিক্ষক আল্লামা হাফিয ইব্ন তাইমিয়ার সঙ্গে তাঁর ঘনিষ্ট নিবিঢ় সম্বন্ধ থাকার কারণে শিক্ষা ও জ্ঞান অর্জনের ব্যাপারে এই শিষ্যের উপর উস্তাদের প্রভাব বিস্তার করেছিল অতি প্রগাঢ় ভাবে। ইব্ন কাছীর অধিকাংশ মাস'আলায় হাফিয ইব্ন তাইমিয়ার অনুসারী ছিলেন। ইব্ন কাযি শাহাবা শ্বীয় তাবাকাত গ্রন্থে বলেন, আল্লামা ইমাম ইবনে তাইমিয়ার সঙ্গে তাঁর নিবিঢ় সম্পর্ক ছিল। শুধু তাই নয়, তিনি ইমাম ইব্ন তাইমিয়ার মত ও পৃথক পূর্ণ সমর্থন যুগিয়ে বিতর্ক করতেন এবং তাঁর বহু মতের অনুসরন করতেন। তিনি তালাকের মাস'আলাতে ও ইবনে তাইমিয়ার মতানুযায়ী ফতওয়া দিতেন। এসব কারণে তাকে এক ভীষণ অগ্নি পরীক্ষায় সন্মুখীন হতে হয় এবং অন্তহীন নির্যাত্নন যাতনা ভোগ করতে হয়।

 $^{^{29}}$ নওয়াব সিদ্দিক হাসান খাঁ ভূপালী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৭৮০

كانت له خصوصية بابن تيمية و مناضلة عنه و اتباع له كثير من اراءه و كان يفتي برايه في مسءلة الطلاق و امتحن بسب ذالك و اوزي

11. ইন্তেকাল

অবধারিত মৃত্যুর আগে এই নশ্বর জীবনের শেষ ভাগে ইব্ন কাছীর দৃষ্টিহীন হয়ে পড়েন। অতঃপর ১৩৭২ খ্রিস্টাব্দ মৃতাবিক ৭৭৪ হিজরির ২৬ শে শাবান রোজ বৃহস্পতি এই মহামনীষী অস্থায়ী দুনিয়ার বুক থকে বিদায় নিয়ে আথিরাতের সেই অনন্তকালে যাত্রা করেন। ইল্লা লিল্লাহি ওয়া ইল্লা ইলাই হি রাজিউন। দিমাশকের সুপ্রসিদ্ধ করর স্থান সুফিয়াতে স্বীয় শ্রদ্ধেয় শিক্ষক ইমাম তাকীউদিন ইবনে তাইমিয়ার কবরের পাশে তাকে সমাদিস্থ করা হয়। তাঁর মহা প্রয়াণে ভক্ত—অনুরক্ত শিষ্য শাগরিদরা বেদনাবিধুর প্রাণে যে হৃদয় বিদারক মর্সিয়া বা শোক গাঁখা আবৃতি করেন, তন্মধ্যে নিম্নে দৃটি পঙ্কটি উপস্থাপন করছি,

"চিরদিনের মতো তোমাকে হারিয়ে তোমার প্রিয় শিক্ষক আজ হা হুতাশ করে ফিরছে, আর এ অজস্র ও অকৃপণ ধারায় অশ্রু বিসর্জন করছে যে, কোন ক্রমেই তা রুদ্ধ হবার নয়। যদি তারা সেই অশ্রুধারার সঙ্গে তাজা শোনিত রং মিশ্রিত করে দিত, তবু ও হে ইব্ন কাছীর। এটা তোমার ব্যাপারে ও যতসামান্য বলেই গণ্য হতো"। হাফিয ইব্ন কাছীরের উত্তরাধিকারীদের মধ্যে দুই পুত্র রত্ন ইসলাম জগতে বিপুল খ্যাতি অর্জন করতে সমর্থ হয়েছেন, এদের একজন হচ্ছেন যাইনুদ্দিন আন্মুর রাহমান আল-কারশী এবং অপরজন বদরুদ্দীন আবুল বাকা মুহাম্মদ আল–কারশী।

12. ইমাম ইব্ন কাছীর রচিত গ্রন্থমালা

আল্লামা হাফিয ইব্ন কাছীর তাঁর অমর স্মৃতির নিদর্শন হিসেবে এই মরজগতের বুকে যেসব মহামূল্য ধন-সম্পদ ও বিষয় বৈভব ছেড়ে গেছেন, তন্মধ্যে তাঁর লিখিত তাফসিরুল কুরআন, হাদীসে রাসুল (সঃ), সিরাতুল্লাবী (সঃ), ইতিহাস, ফিকাহ শাস্ত্র ইত্যাদি সম্মন্ধনীয় গ্রন্থাবলী আজও বেশ জনপ্রিয়, সবার কাছে বিশেষ সমাদৃত ও দল মত নির্বিশেষে গ্রহণীয়। প্রায় সকল যুগের ঐতিহাসিকবৃন্দ ও তাফসীরকারকগণ তাঁর ইতিহাসে ও তাফসীর সম্বন্ধনীয় এবং অন্যান্য গ্রন্থাবলীর প্রভূত প্রশংসা করেন। স্থনামধন্য মুহাদিস ও ঐতিহাসিক আল্লামা হাফিয

শামসুদীন যাহাবী বলেন, লাহু তাসানীফু মুফীদাহ অর্থাৎ তাঁর রচিত গ্রন্থমালা বেশ উপকারি³⁰। আল্লামা হাফিয ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানীর মতে, তাঁর জীবদ্দশাতেই তাঁর মহামূল্য গ্রন্থাবলী বিভিন্ন নগর বন্দরে শ্রেষ্ঠ স্থান অধিকার করে এবং তাঁর মৃত্যুর পর দলমত নির্বিশেষে প্রায় সকল লোকই তদ্বারা বেশ লাভবান ও উপকৃত হয্³¹।

আল্লাম হুসাইনী দিমাশকীর মতে, এই আলোচ্য গ্রন্থ পাঁচ খন্ডে সমাপ্ত হয়েছে³²। লেখক এতে হাফিয জামাল ইউসুফ বিন আব্দুর রাহমান মিয়্যীর তাহ্যীবুল কামাল এবং হাফিয় শামসুদিন যাহাবীর মীয়ানুল ইতিদাল নামক চমৎকার গ্রন্থদ্বয়কে একত্রিত করেছেন। শুধু তাই নয়, নিজের পক্ষ থকে বহু মূল্যবান তথ্য সংযোজন করে বেশ পরিবর্ধিত আকারে প্রকাশ করেন। গ্রন্থকার স্বয়ং অভিমত প্রকাশ করতে গিয়ে বলেন هو انفع شيا আলোচ্য গ্রন্থখানি বিশেষ অভিজ্ঞতা সম্পন্ন শাস্ত্রবিদের জন্য যেমন লাভজনক, ঠিক তেমনি মুহাদিসের পক্ষে ও উপকারী। (২) الهدي و السنن في احاديث المسانيد و السنن أي المرابع أ

_

³⁰ আল্লামা হাফিয শামসুদ্দিন আয-যাহাবী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৭১

³¹ ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানী, *আদ দুরারুল কামীনাহ*, বৈরুত, মু্য়াসাসাহ আল রিসালাহ, ১৪০৬ হি: /১৯৮৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ২৮৬

³² আল্লামা জালাল উদ্দিন সুয়ূতি, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১৫৪

রিওয়ায়িত গুলোকে একত্র করে বিভিন্ন অধ্যায় ও পরিচ্ছেদে সুন্দর ভাবে বিন্যস্ত করা হয়েছে। এ প্রসঙ্গে প্রখ্যাত মুহাদিস আলামা কাওসারী বলেন, হুয়া মিন আনফায়ি কুতুবিহি অর্থাৎ এই আলোচ্য পুস্তকটি গ্রন্থকারের অত্যন্ত উপকারী গ্রন্থাবলীর অন্যতম। এর হস্তলিখিত একটি কপি মিসরের দারুল কুতুবিল মিসরীয়ায় সংরক্ষিত রয়েছে। (৩) طبقات الشافعية ''তাবাকাতুশ শাফাঈয়াহ'': এই গ্রন্থে শাফিঈ ফকীহদের বিস্তারিত বিবরণ প্রদত্ত হয়েছে। এর হস্তুলিথিত একটি কপি শাইথ আব্দুর রাযযাক হামযাহ শাইথ হুসাইন বাসলামার কাছে স্বুয়ং প্রত্যক্ষ করেছেন। (৪) مناقب الشافعي ''মানাকিবুশ শাফিঈ'': এই পুস্তকে ইমাম শাফেয়ীর অবস্থা বর্ণিত হয়েছে। লেথক তাঁর অনবদ্য অবদান আল- বিদায়াহ আয়ান নিহায়াহ এর মধ্যে ইমাম শাফেয়ীর বিবরণ দিতে গিয়ে এই আলোচ্য পুস্তকের ও উল্লেখ করেছেন। এর হস্ত লিখিত কপিটি তাবাকাতুশ শাফিঈয়ার সঙ্গে সংযুক্ত ও একত্রিত। হাজী খলিকা তাঁর কাশকুয যুনুন গ্রন্থে এই পুস্তকিটর নাম ادريس ।دريس খিনুন নাম الواضح النفيس في مناقب الامام ابن नाकीप की मानाकिवि ইমাম ইবলে ইদ্রীप বলে উল্লেখ করেছেন। (৫) تخريج احاديث ادلة التنبيه ''তাখরীজু আহাদীपি আদিল্লাতিত তামবীহ''। (৬) الحاجب احاديث مختصر ابن الحاجب ''তাখরীজু আহাদীসি মুখতাসার ইবনিল হাজিব'': গ্রন্থকার তাঁর ছাত্র জীবনে প্রাথমিক পর্যায়ে ইবনুল হাজারের³³তামবিহ ও মুখতাসার নামক সংক্ষিপ্ত পুস্তকদ্ধ্য কন্ঠস্থ করেছিলেন, সে যুগের প্রচলিত রীতি অনুযায়ী।

(٩) شرح صحيح البخاري "শারহু সাহীহিল বুথারী": গ্রন্থাকার ইব্ন কাছীর বুথারী শরীফের এই ভাষ্যটি লিখতে শুরু করেছিলেন এবং এ কাজে বেশ কিছুদুর অগ্রসর হয়েছিলেন। কিন্তু দুঃখের বিষয় তা সম্পূর্ণ করতে পারেননি। হাজী থলীফা তার কাশফুয-যুনুন গ্রন্থে বলেন যে, এটি শুধু মাত্র প্রাথমিক অংশেরই ভাষ্য। গ্রন্থকার তাঁর ইথতিসারু উলূমিল হাদিস গ্রন্থে ভাষ্যটির উল্লেখ করেছেন। (৮) । ''আল আহকামুল কাবীর'': এই গ্রন্থখানিতে তিনি শুধুমাত্র আহকাম বা অনুশাসন সম্পর্কিত হাদীস গুলোকে বিশুদ্ধভাবে লিপিবদ্ধ করতে শুরু করেছিলেন, কিন্তু কিতাবুল হন্ধ পর্যন্ত পৌছে আর বেশীদুর অগ্রসর হতে পারেননি। ইব্ন কাছীর তাঁর ইথতিসারু উলূমিল হাদীস গ্রন্থে এর উল্লেখ করেছেন। মাওলানা নুর মুহাম্মদ আজমী সাহেব আহকামে সুগরা লামে তাঁর আর ও একটি গ্রন্থের কথা উল্লেখ করেছেল। অন্যান্য হাদীস বেত্তাদের আর ও একটি গ্রন্থের কথা উল্লেখ করেছেন। তবে অন্যান্য হাদীস বেত্তাদের অনুকরনে হাফিয ইব্ন কাছীর আহকামে উসতা নামকরণে এ জাতীয় কোন গ্রন্থ প্রণয়ন করেননি³⁴।

³³ ইব্ন হাজীবের উপরিউক্ত গ্রন্থ দুটির ভাষ্য বা শারহা লিথেছেন আল্লামা শামসুদিন মাহমুদ বিন আব্দুর রাহমান ইস্পাহানী। এই ভাষ্যকারের কাছ থেকে ইব্ন কাছীর আলোচ্য গ্রন্থদ্ধ্য় পড়েছেন।

³⁴ মাওলালা লুর মুহাম্মদ আজমী, *হাদিসের তত্ব ও ইতিহাস*, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন বাংলাদেশ, ২য় মুদ্রণ, ১৯৭৫ থৃ:, পৃ. ১২৯

(৯) اختصار علوم الحديث 'ইথতিসারু উলূমিল হাদীস'': আল্লামা সিদ্দীক হাসান খাঁ ভূপালী তাঁর মিনহাযুল উসুল ফী ইস্তিলাহি আহাদীসির রাসূল গ্রন্থে এর নাম المحيث على معرفة علوم الحديث على معرفة علوم الحديث على معرفة علوم الحديث المحيث আল বাইসুল হাদিস আলা মাআরিফাতে উলূমিল হাদিস বলে উল্লেখ করেছেন। এটি আল্লামা ইবনুস সালাহ লিখিত সুপ্রসিদ্ধ উসুলুল হাদিসের কিতাব উলূমিল হাদীস ওরফে বলে উল্লেখ করেছন, এটি আল্লামা ইবনুস সালহা লিখিত সুপ্রসিদ্ধ উসুলুল হাদিসের কিতাব উলূমিল হাদীস ওরফে মুকাদ্দিমা ইবনুস সালাহ আক্রর সংক্ষিপ্তসার। হাফিয ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানী এই গ্রন্থ সম্পর্কে বলেনঃ مقدمة المحلاع এবহু উপকারী বিষয়বস্তুর সমাবেশ এতে রয়েছে। এটি সুন্দরভাবে সম্পাদনা করেছেন আহমাদ মুহাম্মদ শাকির। এর শুরুতে রয়েছে শাইখ মুহাম্মদ আব্দুর রায্যাক হাম্যাহ কৃত একটি গুরুত্বপূর্ণ ভূমিকা এবং হাফিয ইব্ন কাছীরের সংক্ষিপ্ত জীবন কখা।

(১০) مسند الشيخين ''মুসনাদুস শাইথাইন'': এতে হজরত আবু বকর (রাঃ) এবং হযরত উমর (র) থেকে বর্ণিত হাদিস সমূহ সংগৃহীত হয়েছে। গ্রন্থকার ইব্ন কাছীর তাঁর ইথিতিসারু উলূমিল হাদীস গ্রন্থে আর এক থানি মুসনাদে উমর নামক গ্রন্থের কথা উল্লেখ করেছেন। কিন্তু এটা একটা স্বতন্ত্র গ্রন্থ, না উপরিউক্ত গ্রন্থেরই দ্বিতীয় থন্ড তা সঠিক তাবে জানা যায়না। (১১) السيرة النبوية ''আসসীরাতুন নববীয়াহ'': এ একথানি বৃহদাকার উৎকৃষ্ট সীরাত গ্রন্থ। (১২) النصول في اختصار سيرة الرسول (১২) আল—ফুসুল ফী ইথতেসারী সীরাতির রাসূল'': এটি হযরত রাসুলে আকরাম (সঃ) এর এক থানি সংক্ষিপ্ত জীবনী গ্রন্থ। হাফিয ইব্ন কাছীর স্বয়ং তাঁর তাফসীরে সুরা আল-আহযাবে খন্দক বা পরিখা যুদ্ধের বর্ণনা প্রসঙ্গে এই গ্রন্থের কথা উল্লেখ করেছেন। এর এক থানি হস্তুলিখিত কপি মদীনা মুনাওয়রার শাইখুল ইসলাম গ্রন্থগারে আজ ও সংরক্ষিত রয়েছে। (১৩) আল আন মুশাতাসারু মুকাদ্দিমাত'': গ্রন্থাকার স্বীয় ইথতিসারু উলুমিল হাদীস গ্রন্থে এর উল্লেখ করেছেন। এ ছাড়া ও মুখাতাসারু মুকাদ্দিমা ইবনুস সালাহ গ্রন্থে ও তিনি এর বরাত দিয়েছেন।

(১৪) مختصر كتاب المدخل للامام البيهةي ''মুখতাসার কিতাবুল মাদখালা লিল ইমাম বায়হাকী'': এই গ্রন্থের নাম গ্রন্থকার স্বয়ং ইখতিসারু উলূমিল হাদীস এর ভূমিকায় উল্লেখ করেছেন। এটি ইমাম আহামদ বিন হুসাইন আল বায়হাকী কৃত কিতাবুল মাদখালের সংক্ষিপ্ত-সার। (১৫) رسالة الاجتهاد في طلب الجهاد (১৫) رسالة الاجتهاد في طلب الجهاد (১৫) نسالة الاجتهاد في طلب الجهاد (১৫) مختصر خات ''রিসালাতুল ইজতিহাদ কী তালাবিল জিহাদ'': খ্রিস্টানরা যখন আয়াস দুর্গ অবরোধ করে সেই সময়ে তিনি এই পুস্তিকা খানি আমীর মঙ্গাকের উদ্দেশ্যে লিপিবদ্ধ করেছেন। এটি মিসর খেকে মুদ্রিত প্রকাশিত হয়েছে। (১৬) رسالة في فضاءل القران (১৫) ''রিসালাতুন কী ফাযায়িলিল কুরআন'': এটি মিসরের আল মানার এবং অন্যান্য প্রেস খেকে তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর সাথে এর পরিশিষ্ট হিসেবে মুদ্রিত হয়ে প্রকাশ লাভ করেছে। বুলাক প্রেস খেকে মুদ্রিত কপিতে এই পুস্তকাটি

নেই। গ্রন্থাকারের যে কপির সঙ্গে মক্কা শরীফের কপিটি মিলানো হয়েছে তাতে এটি পাওয়া যায়। এর পৃষ্ঠা সংখ্যা ৫৮। এটি হাদিস ও কুরআনের আলোকে লিপিবদ্ধ অত্যন্ত প্রামাণ্য ও নির্ভর্যোগ্য পুস্তক। (১৭) مسند الامام احمد "মুসনাদ আহমাদ ইব্ন হাম্বল'': মহামতি আহমদ ইব্ন হাম্বলের বিরাট ও বিশাল মুসনাদ গ্রন্থানি কে বর্ণমালার ক্রম অনুযায়ী সাজিয়ে গুছিয়ে সুবিন্যাস্ত করে এবং তাঁর সঙ্গে ইমাম তাবরানীর মুজাম ও আবু ইয়ালার মুসনাদ থেকে অতিরিক্ত হাদীস গুলো তাঁর মধ্যে সন্নিবেশিত করে এই গ্রন্থখানি সংকলিত হয়েছে। (১৮) البداية و النهاية ('আল বিদায়া ওয়ান নিহায়া'': ইব্ন কাছীর রচিত ইতিহাস বিষয়ক এই বিরাট গ্রন্থথানি তাঁর এক অনবদ্য সৃষ্টি। মিসর খেকে একাধিকবার এটি মুদ্রিত ও প্রকাশিত হয়েছে। এতে সৃষ্টির প্রাথমিক কাল থেকে শুরু করে শেষ পর্যন্ত সমস্ত ঘটনা ও অবস্থার কথা সুন্দরভাবে স্ব-বিস্তারে বিধৃত হয়েছে। হাজী থলীফা তাঁর সুপ্রসিদ্ধ কাশফুযযুনুন গ্রন্থে বলেন, اعتمد في نقله على النص من الكتاب والسنة في وقاء ع الالوف السالغة ميز ন্যুর কালের শত সহস্র বছরের ঘটনা সমূহের বিবরণ পবিত্র কুরআন بين الصحيح السقيم و الخيرالاسراءيلي و غيره ও শাশ্বত সুন্নাহর বর্ণনার উপর ভিত্তি করে পেশ করা হয়েছে, এবং সহীহ ও দুর্বল এবং ইদ্রাঈলীয় রেওয়ায়েত গুলোকে আলাদা আলাদাভাবে দেখানো হয়েছে। মোটকখা, ইমাম ইবন কাছীর এই অনবদ্য ইতিহাস গ্রন্থের স্ট্রসরাইলিয়াত বা অলীক ও আজগুবি ঘটনা সমূহকে সম্পূর্ণভাবে পরিহার করেছেন। প্রখ্যাত ঐতিহাসিক তাগরী বিরদী আলোচনা গ্রন্থ সম্পর্কে বলেন, গ্রন্থখানি অতীব চমৎকার।(১৯) تفسير القران الكريم ''তাফসীরুল কুরআনুল কারীম বা তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর'': পবিত্র কুরআনের এই স্ব-প্রসিদ্ধ ভাষ্য গ্রন্থ সম্পর্কে স্বয়ং আল্লামা জালালুদ্দিন সু্মূতী (রঃ) বলেন, الم يولف علي نمطه مثله এ ধরনের অন্য কোন তাফসীর লিপিবদ্ধ হ্য়নি। কা্যরোর প্রখ্যাত আলেম যাহিদ বিন হাসান আল-কাউসারী আল্লামা জালালুদীন সু্যূতীর বরাতে বলেন, هومن افید کتب التفسیر بالروایة রিও্য়ায়েতের বিশিষ্ট তাফসীর সমৃহের মধ্যে এটি হচ্ছে সবচেয়ে কল্যাণপ্রদ ও উপকারী³⁵।

13. তাফসীরে ইব্ল কাছীরের বিশেষত্ব

হাফিয ইমাম ইব্ন কাদীর সর্বমোট যে বিশটি গ্রন্থ রচনা করেছেন, তন্মধ্যে এই তাফসীরুল কুরআনুল কারীমই তাঁর অনবদ্য সৃষ্টি, অবিস্মরণীয় ও অমর অবদান। এর প্রতি খণ্ডের পাতায় পাতায় পরিস্ফুট রয়েছে নিরবিচ্ছিন্ন কঠোর পরিশ্রম, গবেষণা সুলভ অনুসন্ধিৎসা, অধ্যয়ন ও সুগভীর পাণ্ডিত্যের ছাপ। আল্লামা জালালুদিন সুযূতি

_

[©]Chowdury, Saeyd Rashed Hasan, (2014), "Tafsir Ibn Kathir: Biography of Writer and Specialist in Tafsir"

বলেন, এ ধরনের তাফসীর আজ পর্যন্ত অন্য কেউ লিগিবদ্ধ করেননি। রিওয়ায়েত ভিত্তিক তাফসীর সমূহের মধ্যে এটাই সর্বাধিক কল্যাণপ্রদ ও উপকারী। মূলত, তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর এক অমর ও অবিশ্বরণীয় অবদান। ১. বাস্তব রূপ লাভ: প্রাচিন যুগে রচিত তাফসীর গ্রন্থের বহুলাংশই আজ অনন্ত কাল সাগরে বিলীন হয়ে গেছে। আজ তাদের অস্তিত্ব এই পৃথিবীর কোন অংশেই খুজে পাওয়া যাবে না। আবার এমন কতগুলো তাফসীর গ্রন্থ ও রয়েছে যেগুলো এখন ও হস্তলিথিত পাণ্ডুলিপির আকারে আবদ্ধ রয়েছে। কিন্তু সৌভাগ্যক্রমে যেসব গুরুত্বপূর্ণ তাফসীর গ্রন্থ মুদ্রিত ও প্রকাশিত দিনের আলো দেখতে সক্ষম হয়েছে তন্ধ্বাধ্যে এই আলোচ্য তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর বিশেষ উল্লেখের দাবীদার³⁶। ২. রেওয়ায়েত নির্ভর তাফসীর: তাফসীরে মানকুল বা রেওয়ায়িত মূলক তাফসীর সমূহের মধ্যে এটি হচ্ছে সময়ের দিক দিয়ে দ্বিতীয় পর্যায়ের। প্রথম পর্যায়ের তাফসীর হলো তাফসীর ইব্ন জারীর তাবারী। তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীরের মধ্যে অন্যান্য তাফসীর সমূহের বৈশিষ্ট্য গুলোর সংযোগ ও সমন্থ্য সাধিত হয়েছে।

رواية الاجاديث باسانيد غالبا -و بغير اسناد احيانا لالقاء الضوء النبوي علي معني الاية-لان وظفية الرسول التبليغ و -البيان

৩. অন্য তাফমীর গ্রন্থের সন্নিবেশন: অকাট্য দলীল প্রমান দ্বারা মাস'আলা প্রতিপন্ন করার দিক থেকে এক দিকে যেমন এতে তাফমীর ইব্ন জারীর তাবারীর বৈশিষ্ট্যের চাপ রয়েছে, তেমনি অপূর্ব ভাষা শৈলী ও বর্ণনা পদ্ধতির লালিত্যের দিক দিয়ে তাফমীর কুরতুবী ও মা'আলিমূত তানযিলের সমকক্ষতা অর্জন করতে সক্ষম হয়েছে। ৪. অপূর্ব রচনাশৈলী: বর্ণনার লালিত্য ও অকাট্য দলীল প্রমাণ প্রয়োগে অসাধারণ পাণ্ডিত্য প্রদর্শনের ক্ষেত্রে এটা পূর্ববর্তী তাফমীর গ্রন্থ সমূহের উপর শ্রেষ্ঠত্ব অর্জন করেছে। ৫. সনদ ও মতনের বিশ্লেষণ: আরবী শব্দমালার পার্থক্য সহ প্রতিটি হাদীসের সিলসিলায়ে সনদ বা বর্ণনাক্রম দ্বারা নির্ভরযোগ্য করে এর গুরুত্ব ও মূল্য বহুল পরিমাণে বর্ধিত করা হয়েছে। ৬. জটিল ও দুর্বোধ্য অংশ গুলোর বিশদ ব্যাখ্যা: পবিত্র কুরআনের দুর্বোধ্য ও জটিল অংশ গুলোর বিশদ ব্যাখ্যা ছাড়া ও এতে দ্ব্যার্খবোধক শব্দমালার রয়েছে আভিধানিক তাৎপর্য ও শান্ত্রীয় বিশ্লেষণ। ৭. ভ্রান্ত মতামত থন্ডণ: আর ও রয়েছে এতে শাণিত যুক্তির সূক্ষ্ম মানদণ্ডে এবং কষ্টি পাথরে যাচাই করে অকাট্য দলীল প্রমাণের আলোকে কতগুলো ভ্রান্ত মতবাদের থণ্ডন। মোটকথা, এটি বিদ'আত থেকে মুক্ত এবং কুরআন-সুন্নাহর অধিকতর নিকটবর্তী। ৮. সন্দেহ ও জটিলতা বহির্ভূত তাফসীর: এই পাণ্ডিত্য পূর্ণ ভাষ্য গ্রন্থের কোখাও দূরুহতা বা জটিলতাকে প্রশ্রম দেয়া হয়নি। প্রায় সর্বত্রই বর্ণনা রীতির পারিপাট্য, ভাষার স্বচ্ছত

-

³⁶ ডঃ আথতার ফারুক, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১১

ও সাবলীলতা এবং প্রাঞ্জলতার জন্যে আলোচনা হয়েছে প্রাণবন্ত³⁷। ১. বর্ণনার ধারা ও ভাষার স্বচ্ছলতা: বিতর্কমূলক বিষয়ে হাফিয ইব্ল কাছীর বৈজ্ঞানিকের নিরাসক্তি ও ঐতিহাসিকের নির্লিপ্ততা রক্ষা করতে প্রয়াস পেয়েছেল। হাদিসভিত্তিক তত্ব ও তথ্যই এসব ক্ষেত্রে তাকে আলোক বর্তিকা হাতে নিয়ে পথ দেখিয়েছে। ১০. ভাবাবেগশূল্য তাফসির: কুরআন ও হাদীস ভিত্তিক আলোচনা প্রসঙ্গে তিনি তত্ব বিচার-বিশ্লেষণ দ্বারা তাঁর অভিমতকে সুপ্রতিষ্ঠিত করতে চেয়েছেল। কিন্তু কোখাও ভাবাবেগ দ্বারা পরিচালিত ও প্রভাবান্বিত হয়েছেল বলে মলে হয় লা। ১১. বিভিন্ন মাজহাব ও মত্তবাদের সমন্বয়: কথা সত্য যে, হাফিয ইমাম ইব্ল কাছীর আলোচ্য তাফসীরে তাঁর পূর্বসূরি ইব্ল জারির তাবারির রচনা রীতি, ঐতিহাসিক ভাবধারা ও দৃষ্ঠি ভঙ্গির অনুসরণ করেছেল। কিন্তু তাবারীর ইসরাঈলিয়াত লামক যেসব অপ্রমাণ্য ও জাল হাদিস ভিত্তিক উপাখ্যাল ও বিষয়বস্তুর অবতরণ করা হয়েছে। সেগুলোকে যাচাই বাছাই করে ইব্ল কাছীর বিশুদ্ধ হাদীসের আলোকে একে নির্ভরযোগ্য বিশুদ্ধ তাফসীরে পরিণত করার প্রয়াস পেয়েছেল। বলা বাহুল্য, এসব ন্যায় সঙ্গত কারলেই একে তাফসীরে সালাফী লামে অভিহিত করা হয়³⁸।

১২. কুরআনের ভাফসীর কুরআন দ্বারা: এতে কুরআনের ভাফসীরের করতে প্রথমে কুরআন ব্যবহার করা হয়েছে। তারপর রাসুল (সঃ) এর হাদীস, অভঃপর সাহাবা কিরামের আছার, শেষে তাবেঈনের আব্বুয়াল ব্যবহত হয়েছে। ১৩. হাদিস ব্যবহারের ক্ষেত্রে সাবধানতা: আল্লামা ইব্ন কাছীর তাঁর জীবনব্যাপী একনিষ্ট সাধনা ও অক্লান্ত পরিশ্রমের অমৃতফল হিসেবে এই দূরুহ কাজ সুসম্পন্ন করে দিয়ে তিনি সুধি-সজন তথা শিক্ষিত জগতের প্রভুত কল্যাণ সাধন করে গেছেন। আলোচ্য ভাফসীরে তিনি অন্যান্য ভাফসীর ও ইতিহাস গ্রন্থ থেকে ইসরাইলী রিওয়ায়িত গুলোকে সূক্ষ-সমালোচনার ভূমিকা গ্রহন করেছেন। ১৪. উন্মত ভাফসীর: ভাফসীর শাল্লের ক্ষেত্রে এথানেও তিনি বিশেষ কৃতিত্বের অধীকারী। এ কথা সত্য যে, ভাফসীরের ক্ষেত্রে ইব্ন জারীর, ইব্ন হাতিম ও ইব্ন আতীয়া গারনাতী প্রমুথ পূর্বসূরিদের ভাষ্যের তিনি মাঝে মাঝে অনুসরন করেছেন। কিন্তু সেই সঙ্গে তিনি আবার কোন এক বিশেষ উক্তিকে অন্য উক্তির উপর প্রাধান্য দিয়েছেন, আয়াতের সঙ্গে সংশ্লিষ্ট হাদীস গুলোকে বর্ণনা করতে গিয়ে কোনটি অপ্রামাণ্য সে কথা ও তিনি উল্লেখ করেছেন। আর এভাবে রাবী বা বর্ণনাকারীদের সূক্ষ্ম সমালোচনা করতে তিনি আনৌও পশ্চাতপদ হয়নি।

১৫. ইসরাইলী কাহিনী ও জাল হাদীস কর্তন: ইব্ন কাছীর তাঁর তাফসীর গ্রন্থে ইসরাইলী কাহিনী ও জাল হাদিসের সমূলে উৎপাটন করে মুসলিম জাতিকে কুরআন মাজিদের এক নির্ভেজাল ভাষ্য উপহার দিয়েছেন। ১৬. ফিকহী মাস'আলা বিশ্লেষণ: কুরআন মাজীদের অন্যান্য আয়াত ও হাদিস শরীফ ছাড়া ও তিনি স্বীয় তাফসীরের কোন

³⁷ শাইখ আব্দুর রাযযাক আল হামযাহ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১২১

³⁸ আব্দুল কাঁদের মুহাম্মদ, *আদমুদ্দিন ইলমে তাফসীর,* দৈনিক আজাদ, ঈদ সংখ্যা, ১৩৫৩ হি: /১৯৪৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ৭৩

কোন স্থানে ফিকাহ শাস্ত্রীয় বিতর্কের মধ্যে ও অনুপ্রবেশ করার শ্রম স্থীকার করেছেন। এ প্রসঙ্গে তিনি আহকাম সম্মন্ধনীয় আয়াতের ব্যাখ্যা করতে গিয়ে বিভিন্ন মাযহাবের আলেমদের উক্তি ও দলীল সমূহের উল্লেখ করেছেন। উদাহরণ স্বরূপ বলা যেতে পারে যে, সুরাতুল বাকারার ১৮৫ নং আয়াতের তাফসীর প্রসঙ্গে তিনি সংশ্লিষ্ট চারটি মাযহাবের কথা উল্লেখ করেন। যে সম্পর্কে তিনি বিভিন্ন মাযহাবের আলেমদের উক্তি, দলীল প্রমাণ এবং অভিমত পেশ করেন।

১৭. ভূমিকা প্রদান: তাফসীরের শুরুতে তিনি অত্যন্ত মূল্যবান একটি নাতিদীর্ঘ ভূমিকা প্রদান করেছেন। এতে তাফসীর করার বিভিন্ন শর্ত ও প্রয়োজনীয়তার দিক গুলো তুলে ধরেছেন। তাঁর এই ভূমিকাটি পরবর্তী কালের তাফসীরকারকদের মাইলফলক হিসেবে কাজ করেছে³⁹। ১৮. বিভিন্ন ভাষায় অনূদিত: এ তাফসীর গ্রন্থটি বিশ্বের বিভিন্ন ভাষায় অনূদিত হয়েছে। এ ছাড়া মূল ভাষা তথা আরবী ভাষায় এর বিভিন্ন সংক্ষিপ্ত সংস্করণ প্রকাশিত হয়েছে।

14. উপসংহার

মোটকখা, আল্লামা ইব্ন কাদীর তাঁর এ তাফসীর গ্রন্থটিকে সত্যের মানদণ্ড হিসেবে প্রতিষ্ঠিত করতে যত রকমের সতর্কতা ও সমত্ন প্রয়াস প্রয়োজন তাঁর সবই অনুসরণ করেছেন। ফলে এ তাফসীরটি বিদ'আত ও বিদ্রান্তির বেড়াজাল মুক্ত কুরআন-সুল্লাহর এক অতি-উদ্ধল আলোকবর্তিকা ও নির্ভরযোগ্য অমর সৃষ্টি হিসেবে আত্ম-প্রকাশ করেছে।

15. গ্রন্থপঞ্জি

ইসলামিক বিশ্বকোষ, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন সম্পাদিত, ৫ম সংস্করণ, ১৯৯৫ খৃ:, ২য় খণ্ড, আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, সাযারাতুয জাহাব, মিসর, মাকতাবাহ-আল নাহদা আল-মিসরীয়্যা প্রকাশনী, ১৯৮৮ ড. আথতার ফারুক (অনুবাদক),তাফসীর ইব্ন কাছীর, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন, ৫ম সংস্করণ, ২০০১ খৃ:, ১ম খণ্ড

আবুল ফিদা ইমামুদীন ইসমাইল ইব্ন কাছীর, আল বিদায়াহ ওয়ান নিহায়াহ, মিসর, দার আল ইলম লিল মালায়িয়ীন প্রকাশনী, ৭ম সংস্করণ, ১৯৯৪ খৃ:, ২য় খণ্ড, পৃ. ৯৮

নওয়াব সিদ্দিক হাসান থাঁ, আব্ধাদুল উলুম, বৈরুত, সিদ্দীকী প্রেস ভূপাল, ১৮৭৮ খৃ:, ৩য় খণ্ড, পৃ. ৭৮০

-

³⁹ মোল্লা কাতিব চালপী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১১

আল্লামা জালাল উদ্দিন সুমূতি, আয যাইলু তাজিকরাতুল হুফফায, দিমাশক, দিমাশক প্রেস, ১৯৭৮ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২৮

হাফেজ ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানী, আনবাউল উমর বি আবনায়িল উমর, করাচী, তাশ কুবরা জাদাহ প্রকাশনী, ১৮৯৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ৩৯

আল্লামা নাছির উদ্দিন আলবানী, ইমাম ইবন কাছীর, রিয়াদ, দার-আল কুতুব আল-ইলমীইয়্যাহ, ১৯৭৭ খৃ:, ১ম থণ্ড, পৃ. ৮

হাফিজ ইবনুল ইমাদ, জওয়াহিরুল মজিয়াহ ফী তাবাকাতিল হানাফীয়া, হায়দারাবাদ ডেকান, দায়িরাতুল মা'আরিফ প্রেস, ১৩৩২ হি:, পৃ. ১৩৯

শাইথ আন্দুর রাযযাক আল হামযাহ, আল বায়িছুল হাদিস, আল আজহার বিশ্ববিদ্যালয়, ১৪০২ হি: /১৯৮২ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২১

আল্লামা আবুল মাহাসিন জামাল উদ্দিন ইউসুফ, আল মানহালুল সাফি আল মুসতাউফি, বৈরুত, আলী আল-আজহার, ১৩৬০ হি:, পৃ. ৩২

হাফিয শামসুদিন আয-যাহাবী, তাযকিরাতুল হুফফায, হায়দারাবাদ, দারিয়াতুল মাআরিফ প্রেস, ১৩৫৭ হি:, পৃ. ১৩০৬

মাওলানা মুহাম্মদ হুসাইন বাসুদেবপুরী, ইমাম ইব্ন কাদীর শীর্ষক প্রবন্ধ, মাসিক তরজামাতুল হাদিস, করাচী, করাচী ডেকান প্রেস, ১৯৯৫ খৃ:, ১১ খণ্ড, ১ম সংখ্যা, পৃ. ৩২

আল্লামা ইব্ন নাসীরুদীন দিমাসকী, আর রাদুল ওয়াফির, দিমাশক, ওফাইয়াত আল আইয়ান প্রেস, ১৩৯৮ হি:, পৃ. ২৬৯

ইব্ন হাজার আসকালানী, আদ দুরারুল কামীনাহ, বৈরুত, মু্যাসাসাহ আল রিসালাহ, ১৪০৬ হি: /১৯৮৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ২৮৬

মাওলানা নুর মুহাম্মদ আজমী, হাদিসের তত্ব ও ইতিহাস, ঢাকা, ইসলামিক ফাউন্ডেশন বাংলাদেশ, ২য় মুদ্রণ, ১৯৭৫ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২৯

আন্দুল কাঁদের মুহাম্মদ, আদমুদিন ইলমে তাফসীর, দৈনিক আজাদ, ঈদ সংখ্যা, ১৩৫৩ হি: /১৯৪৬ খৃ:, পৃ. ৭৩ ড. মুজিবুর রহমান, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ২

আল্লামা ইবনুল ইমাদ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৮৯

Encyclopedia of Islam, voll. 2, p. 46

Encyclopedia of Islam, ibid, p. 121

ড. মুজিবুর রাহমান, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৫

आल्लामा जालालू पिन पूर्मृष्ठि, প্राগুক্ত, পৃ. ১২৮
आल्लामा रेवनून रेमाप, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১৯৭
লওয়াব সিদীক হাসান খাঁ ভূপালী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ২৩৪
মোল্লা কাতিব চালপী, কাশফুযযনুন, বৈরুত, দার আল ফিকর, ১৪০২ হি: /১৯৮২ খৃ:, পৃ. ১২১
লওয়াব সিদ্দিক হাসান খাঁ ভূপালী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৭৮০
আল্লাमা হাফিয শামসুদিন আয-যাহাবী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ৭১
আল্লাमা জালাল উদিন সুমূতি, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১৫৪
শাইখ আব্দুর রাযযাক আল হামযাহ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১৬
ডঃ আথতার ফারুক, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১১১
শাইখ আব্দুর রাযযাক আল হামযাহ, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১২১
মোল্লা কাতিব চালপী, প্রাগুক্ত, পৃ. ১১

International Journal of Social, Political and Economic Research



ISSN: 2667-8810 (Online) https://www.ijosper.co.uk/



Original Article

Article No: 14_V1_I1_A4

THE ROLE OF INNOVATION IN GLOBAL COMPETITION

RAHMAT ULLAH*

* Karadeniz Technical University, Department of International Relations.

rafiq35ju@gmail.com

ORCID.ORG/0000-0002-1548-5966

Abstract:

With the increasing importance of competition, countries but also achieve sustainable competitive advantage in the international arena they are looking for ways to do it. Countries have traditional trade policies at the macro level as well as micro-level policies they must identify and put into practice. Therefore international competition clustering approach is used to ensure superiority; efficiency and innovation lies under. In this study clustering and Innovation concepts are discussed theoretically, from the world and Turkey examples of clustering are given. As a result of the study, clustering and the effects of innovation policies on competitiveness were examined.

Key Words:

Consuming, Market Analysis, Innovation, Policy Analysis, Cluster.

1. Introduction

The globalization process continues at full speed countries that can achieve competitive advantage can survive and Can continue. Due to this intense competition developed and developing countries to maintain and enhance international competitiveness; producing products faster, better quality and lower costs than competitors develop innovative capabilities and increase existing technology levels is required. That is why countries have a say in today's markets besides being able to use resources more efficiently and more effectively; they need to create unity in the local, national and international spheres and maximize the competitive advantage of the firm-sector-region.

The clustering approach is one of the ways to fulfil this requirement. From in countries' economic policies, increasing productivity and has given place to the clustering of global competitiveness and have achieved successful results. In the first part of the study, the concepts of clustering, innovation and competitiveness drawn general theoretical framework, the second section from the world and Turkey clustering studies are mentioned. In the third chapter, clustering and the relationship between innovation and competitiveness are investigated.

2. Cluster, Innovation, Competitiveness: Conceptual Approach

Michael Porter is a scientist who makes the first definition of the concept of cluster and has been a pioneer in clustering. Porter, clustering in 1998 published in the same line of business an a large number of relationships but also in competition firms and universities together with suppliers selling goods and services to these companies, professional organizations and similar institutions in the same geographical region concentration.. The scope of a cluster is a city, geographic the region can extend to the country and even to the neighboring countries network. Clusters mostly, final product or service companies, specialized workforce, intermediate goods suppliers, the service sector, the finance sector and related companies in the industry It covers. In addition, universities, vocational training institutions, governmental units, trade associations, thought groups (Porter, 1998).

In Industry Cluster: Work Selection by Rosenfeld in 2005 Cluster concept in his work Polit Policy or Branding Strategy Polit, "Not based on membership, such as associations, sufficient scale to generate externalities the concentration of firms or related units geographically in a specific region. (Rosenfeld, 2005: 2).

Robert Gibbs and Andrew Bernat's 'Agricultural Industry Cluster Local Return on Agricultural Development Perspective" located in the geographic region, meeting the needs of input olarak have defined as. In this context, clusters of production facilities are natural. To take advantage

of resources or to be close to a large market or workforce it is as simple as coexistence of firms (Gibbs and Bernat, 1997). PieroMorosini, En Industry Clusters, Information Integration and Performance o in the article, esinde settled in a particular geographic area and social units close to each other, people or a social as a socioeconomic entity elendir (Moroni, 2004: 307).

In a study conducted by Mirhosseini in 1212, the clusters were Mir a group in which each institution and company, suppliers and service providers are connected to each other to increase the value added of firms fir. identified. In this context, clustering is a group of companies that concentrate in a specific geographical region, create synergies among themselves, have the opportunity to use external savings and have common challenges and opportunities (Mirhosseini, 2012: 70). Humphry and Schmitz clustered in their work yarat 3C Approach to Local Industrial Policy Polit, "creating regional wealth, competing with each other have defined as a sectoral and regional concentration formed by enterprises that are collaborative and interdependent and interdependent. In this context Clusters form the leri value chains bu, which are the main arguments of global competition, they are composed of companies and institutions that make up the economic structures (Humphrey and Schmitz, 1996: 1863-1864).

There are three basic characteristics of the concept of clustering from these definitions. The first of these is that the clusters are associated with each other in the production process. is composed of companies. Thus, companies can act jointly in areas such as products, inputs and services. Second, clusters are concentrated in the same geography. In this case, the exchange of information between companies and institutions easier. The third is the need for innovation and therefore the cooperation with universities and other institutions.

Nowadays, rapidly changing technology and the changing rules of trade force firms to be more innovative and more efficient. In order to stand out from the competition and gain a sustainable competitive advantage they need innovation. It is suggested that companies can survive in global competition by constantly changing and renewing their products, services, production methods and management approaches. economic growth and development of countries, improvement of quality of life and increase the competitiveness of firms (Eraslan, Bulu and Minister, 2008: 9). In this context, the concept of innovation comes to the fore and companies develop strategies and policies in this field.

In the simplest case, to define the concept of innovation or innovation; a new or significantly improved product or process in business applications, business organization or external relations, a new marketing method or a new is the realization of an organizational method (Gök, 2007: 6).

J. Schumpeter is one of the most important names who work on innovation and even open up new horizons for him. Many thinkers define Schumpeter as the forerunner of innovation work. Schumpeter's most important idea about innovation is that he sees the innovation as technological and cyclical in driving economic development. 1) production of new goods; 2) development of new production methods; 3) opening to new markets; 4) supply of new natural resources and semi-finished goods; 5) Adoption of a new organizational vision (Godin, 2008: 4).

Innovation brings growth, profitability and competitiveness. In addition, innovation is a special value of the enterprise, It is a concept that cannot be changed, is closely related to internal experiences and experiential gains. Rapid adoption of new products and processes, and presentation plays an important role in gaining competitive advantage. The company's innovative capacity allows it to reach more than its existing potential and to be advantageous in a competitive environment (Sen and Egelholff, 2000: 174-183).

The main driving force behind the theoretical and practical development of the concepts of clustering and innovation is the efforts of firms to gain competitiveness. In this context, the definition of the concept of competitiveness is used in different ways by different people and by their surroundings. for an economist in better performance of a country against its rivals as a reflection of national productivity and standard of living ene, for policy makers to er change the ability of new regulations to compete in the business environment rakip and for the employer in a reflection of market share for goods and services that produce at low cost In short, there is no definitive definition, which can be accepted by everyone in terms of the concept of competitiveness. In this context, the concept of competitiveness should be interpreted according to the subject, needs and purpose (Saxena and Lozacinh, 2010: 16).

3. Cluster Studies from Turkey and the World

Clusters usually emerge spontaneously, while some clusters are formed within the framework of state support and clustering policies. For example; developed countries especially Italy, Germany, USA and Japan development develops and implements cluster policies. In addition, developing countries are implementing policies on clustering. While the goals of each country's policies on clustering are different, there are some common goals (Keskin, 2009: 157).

Silicon Valley, which has an important place in the development of information technologies, was the first cluster example that emerged in America and recorded in this field. success has soon led to the emergence of clusters in many areas, from food to textile, from construction materials to defence industry. The hypothesis of ile convergence em derived from empirical

findings in the Silicon Valley example; support for new industry clusters and regional specialization of new links between telecommunications, the computer and the media industry (Blanc, 2000: 6). Silicon Valley, University, and Scientific The intensity of the research, climatic structure of the region, lifestyle (California lifestyle) and flexible thinking structure are effective in attracting entrepreneurs. Silicon Valley is an example of clustering in which more than 4500 firms are involved, attracting one third of the region's venture capital and forming 8% of the regional workforce (Sturgeon, 2003: 7-15).

The California wine cluster is another example of clustering. California wine set 680 commercial winery and thousands of independent grapes manufacturer. Also included is a large-scale complementary industry that supports both winemaking and grape cultivation, including vaccination, irrigation and harvesting equipment, barrels and labels, specialist public relations and promotional companies, and numerous wine advertisements targeting consumer and commercial audience (Porter). , 1998: 122).

In addition, the Australian (Victoria) Wine Cluster, Australia (Cairns) Tourism and Accommodation Cluster, Spain Castellon Ceramic Cluster (Gürsoy, 2008: 11-13), London and USA - Wall Street Financial Cluster, Media Clustering in Hoollywood, Tourism in LasVegas (Fun-Gambling) cluster is a successful cluster. Detroit and Convery cities in the US and South Germany in the automotive industry, France-Paris tourism industry, Japan electronics, Swedish financial industry, Norwegian maritime transport, Northern Italy textile and leather products field, India-Bangalor Some of the examples of successful clustering in the software industry (Keskin, 2009: 157-158).

From the perspective of Turkey cluster studies, it began in the 1999 earthquake began to heal the scars of that period and has been the most common examples of organized industrial zones and technoparks. The first pilot study on clustering in Turkey Competitive Advantage of Turkey (CAT) was initiated by the group. The CAT group, which was initially a voluntary organization, later became a non-governmental organization under the International Competition Research Authority (URAK) (Eraslan, vezirconsalting.com).

In Turkey, as the basis of national cluster policies by developing industry with competitiveness and to contribute to the development of the structure competitive to ensure sustainable export growth as the ultimate "Development of a National Clustering Policy Project" prepared, 2007 was introduced officially in March and in March 2009 10 pilot projects roadmap for business clusters in Turkey in the context tamamlanmıştır.b were prepared and analyzed as hususlardetayl necessary for the development of this pilot clusters. These pilot clusters include Mersin Processed Food Cluster, Ankara Software Cluster, Denizli-Usak Home Textile Cluster,

Ankara Machine Cluster, Konya Automotive Side Cluster, Mugla Yacht Production and Yacht Tourism Cluster, Eskisehir-Bilecik-Kutahya Ceramic Cluster, İzmir Organic Food Business The cluster consists of the Manisa Electrical and Electronic Instrumentation Cluster and the Marmara Automotive Cluster Cluster (bodto.org).

The European Union's 2007-2013 budget period, the scope of financial cooperation "Turkey's convergence with the European Union and Turkey to contribute to reducing regional disparities in social and economic development," the purpose of the Regional Competitiveness Operational Program (RCOP) is prepared (sanayi.gov. tr). Clustering analyzes have been performed for 11 pilot groups within the scope of RCOP and clustering with current status of these 11 clusters. The main issues in the field have been introduced. Highlights of the RCOP Kayseri-Furniture, Gaziantep-Machine Carpet, Yozgat-Furniture, Trabzon-Woodworking, Samsun-Foreign Trade Transactions, Malatya-Apricot, Erzurum-Kars-Winter Tourism, Mardin-Tourism and Corum-Machine Business clusters (bodto.org).

4. The Effect of Cluster and Innovation on Competitiveness

In a global competitive environment, small and medium-sized enterprises are seeking new policies to increase their competitiveness and to have a voice in world markets. The global competition environment further expansion; universities, research institutions, public institutions, professional organizations, and even local governments. Management, 2009: 166). Clustering is important because it becomes more efficient and innovative when a firm is involved in the cluster. However, clusters play an important role in the creation of new job opportunities compared to other regions. Clusters, contained within it affect the competitiveness of firms in three main ways (Çağlar, 2006: 309).

These: increase the productivity and productivity of enterprises, promote and develop innovation, accelerate the commercialization process. In order to increase the competitiveness of the companies by using new products and technology, there should be an environment that encourages innovation. Innovation is the source of competitiveness. Innovation in today's industries where knowledge is heavily used, rather than prosperity and low cost based on their capabilities. In terms of clustering, innovation affects productivity and competitiveness (Özgen, 2009: 52-60). Innovation provides added value and productivity for countries and increases competitiveness, as well as helping to solve global problems (climate change, energy security, infectious diseases, poverty, etc.) (Çağlar, 2008). In the environment, there is a specialization in technological innovation under the ability to achieve international competitiveness. For this

reason, as well as the rapid production and revenue growth of innovation, It is generally accepted that it is one of the determinants (Terzioğlu, 2008: 17).

5. Conclusion and Recommendation

The primary aim of the clusters is the global competitiveness and the sustainability of this competition. In this context, the better the export performance of the country, the more competitive the global sense. Considering that the condition of providing competitive advantage is to produce quality products at low cost, the essence of the subject is efficiency and concepts of innovation. The rapidly increasing competition environment and rapidly developing technology, the changing rules of global trade, micro-based, the enterprises to be more innovative and more efficient. In order to manage change, to be one step ahead of competitors in the competitive environment, innovation or innovation based on innovation is very important for enterprises to gain competitive advantage.

In the global competitive environment, competing companies are now replaced by competing companies. In this respect, the the company does not have the chance to compete in the long term. Therefore clustering The approach is in fact a complement to other regional development tools. Supporting regional clusters this will lead to new business opportunities in parallel. This situation will increase the entrepreneurship and employment, and in this way, the competitiveness of the regions and the countries at the international level is positive where it will affect.

6. References

Çağlar, Esen, "Türkiye'de Yerelleşme ve Rekabet Gücü: Kümelenmeye Dayalı Politikalar ve Organize Sanayi Bölgeleri", TR Ekonomi Araştırmaları Vakfı, 2006.

Çağlar, Esen, "Türkiye'de Rekabet Gücü İçin Politika Çerçevesi: İnovasyon ve Kümelenmeler", Türkiye Ekonomi Politikaları Araştırma Vakfı, 2008.

Blanc, Le Gilles, "RegionalSpecialization, LocalExternalities and Clustering in Information TechnologyIndustries", XII Villa MondragoneInternalionalEconomicSeminar, University Tor Vergata, Roma, 2000.

bodto.org, Ulusal Kümelenme Politikasının Geliştirilmesi Projesi, http://www.bodto.org.tr/images/other/kumelenme_kapanis_etkinligi_basin_%20bilgi_%20not u.pdf , E.T.: 05.03.2013

Eraslan, Hakkı, "Türkiye'de Kümelenme Projeleri ve Uygulamaları", http://www.vezirconsulting.com/turkiyede-kumelenme-projeleri-ve-uygulamalari E.T.:03.03.2013

Eraslan, Hakkı, Melih Bulu ve İsmail Bakan, "Kümelenmeler ve İnovasyona Etkisi: Türk Turizm Sektöründe Uygulamalar", Seyahat ve Otel İşletmeciliği Dergisi, 2008, 3:1

Gibbs, Robert M., Bernat, G. Andrew, "RuralIndustryClustersRaiseLocalEarnings", Rural Development Perspectives,1997, vol. 12, no.3.

Godin, Benoît, IntheShadow of Schumpeter: W. Rupert Maclaurin and the Study of Technological Innovation, 2008.

Gök, Abdullah, Oslo Klavuzu Işığında "Yenilik", Tübitak Bilim, Teknoloji ve Yenilikçilik Politikaları Daire Başkanlığı, 2007.

Gürsoy, Murat, "Kümelenme ve İnovasyon", Sanayi ve Ticaret Bakanlığı OSB Üst Kurulu, 2008, www.izmiryenilik.com, Erişim: 27.03.2013.

Humphrey, John, Schmitz, Hubert, "TheTriple C ApproachtoLocalIndustrialPolicy", World Development,1996, Vol.24.

Keskin, Hidayet, "Kümelenme ve Sektörel Bağlantıları Açısından Isparta Orman Ürünleri Endüstrisinin Değerlendirilmesi", Süleyman Demirel Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü (Yayınlanmış Doktora Tezi), 2009.

Küme Yönetimi, Uygulama Klavuzu, KOSGEB, 2009.

Mirhosseini, SeyedValiollah, "TheStudy of IndustrialClustersPerformance in IslamicRepublic of Iran", International Journal of AcademicResearch in Business andSocialSciences, Vol.2, No.3, 2012.

Morosini, Piero, "IndustrialClusters, Knowledge Integration andPerformance", International Institutefor Management Development (IMD), Laussanne, Switzerland, 2004.

Özgen, Buğra Doğukan, "Küresel Rekabette İnovasyon ve Bilginin Rolü: Kümelenme Modeli ve Politikaları", İstanbul Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü, (Yayınlanmış Yüksek Lisans Tezi), 2009.

Porter, Michael E., "Clusters and the New Economics of Competition", Harward Business Review, 1998.

Rosenfeld, Stuart, "Industry Cluster: Business Choicei Policy Outcome or Branding Strategy?", 2005.

Sanayi.gov.tr, Katılım Öncesi Yardım Aracı (IPA) ve Bölgesel Rekabet Edebilirlik Operasyonel Programı, https://ipa.sanayi.gov.tr/tr/content/genelbilgi/35 E.T.: 05.04.2013.

Saxena, S.B. ve Lozac'h, "Competitiveness in the Garment and Textile Industry: Creating a Supportive Environment: A Case Study of Bangladesh", The Asian Foundation, Occasional Paper, 2010, No:1

Sen, Falguni K., William G. Egelholf, "Innovative Capabilities of a Firmand the Use of Technical Alliances", IEEE Transsactions on Engineering Management, 2000, vol:47, No2. Sturgeon, Timothy J., "WhatReally Goes On InSiliconValley? Spatial Clustering and Dispersal In Modular Production Networks", Industrial Performance Center –Massachusetts Institute of Technology IPC WorkingPaper Series, 2003

Terzioğlu, Mustafa, "İşletmelerde İnovasyon Yeteneği: Denizli Tesktil Sektörü Örneği", Muğla Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü, (Yayınlanmış Yüksek Lisans Tezi), Muğla, 2008.

International Journal of Social, Political and Economic Research

IJôSPER

ISSN: 2667-8810 (Online) https://www.ijosper.co.uk/



Original Article

Article No: 14_V1_I1_A5

EROSION OF KOBADAK RIVER AND ADAPTATION PROCESS OF THE LOCAL PEOPLE

BACHCHU SHEIKH*

*MPhil Researcher, Department of International Relations, Jahangirnagar University.

Abstract:

All the families who have settled after the riverbank erosion in Padmapukur village have been faced the disaster. It has been found that even after the breakdown, changes in the different elements of the family have been made during the breakdown. However, research has shown that changes in various aspects of life are observed before the river erosion everywhere.

It has been found in the study that there is no family that has become financially viable, rather than their socio-economic status has become more detorioted day after day. And through this changing situation, people of Padmapukur village are trying to stay on their own homesteads with the last penny of life. During the erosion of the river, it has been observed that a broad difference is seen between the present and previous profession.

It has been found that during the breakdown of the river, the villagers who have been victims of river erosion, even lost the arable land, have taken shelter in nearby villages, Upazillas or adjacent districts. However, many of them have settled on the previous land, but this has been possible when the transit was created after the breakdown. However, in these cases, there can be no specific change in the social status. Among these divergent conditions, the people Padma Pukur have been staying.

Research has found that despite the repeated disruption of riverbank erosion, people try to adopt with ther short-term and long-term procedures. But in this case, people are not seen to be very vocal. But government and non-governmental organizations play a helpful role.

Key Words:

Erosion, River, Adaptation Process, Local People.

1. Location of the Kodabak River

Kodabak River originally started on the banks from Kodabak river near the Tahirpur of Jhenaidah district on the east bank of Bhairab river. Since the main course of Bhairab is separated from the Mathabhanga river, Tahirpur gets very little water flow at any time of the year. But water flowed at Tahirpur as the main flow of Bhairab, which is rehabilitated through Jibanagar and Coatchandpur areas, with the equatorial lake and drainage of groundwater. However, the entire recycled flow of Bhairab River flowed, turning the direction of Tahirpur down the direction of the river, falling into the river Kodabak. The Bhairab river basin of Tahirpur is now completely dead due to geological changes.

The flow of the Kodabak river touch into the international border in Tuluni, Jhawgacha. It receives water flow from the Arial Bil near Jhikargachha in Jessore district. In Jhikargachha, it has two branches of Haripur and Bhadak river from West Bank. The rivers are now almost dead for their irregular flow.

The highly active and muddy silt salts are affected by the water of the Kodabak river tidal in Tala upazila. After entering Paikgacha Upazila of Khulna district, two branches came to Kapilmuni in Jessore. On the basis of the main flow of Kodabak river in Kapilmuni, the river leaves the direction and joins the river Shibsha in southeast to the Hariya river. The original course of the Kodabak river is in the west, then on the north, and then in front of Gabura Union of Satkhira district which mixed with the river of Kholpetua.

The Kodabak river basin has a large concave area, but there is little sweet water flows in the upstream. On the other hand, this river carries heavy sediments during tide. Thus the river is gradually being polycystic and draining. The problem of acute water logging in the low land area of Keshabpur, Manirampur and Tala upazila of Satkhira.

From Tahirpur to Jhikargachha, the Kodabak river is 40 km long and about 60 kilometers from Jhikargachha to Satkhira Khulna Road Bridge Bonnarpota (Haque, 2008: 53).

2. Current Intensity of River Erosion of the Kodabak River

The intensity of the current erosion of the Kobadak River are observed in koyra and Shyamnagar upazilas of Khulna and Satkhira districts respectivelyh. Because these areas are coastal, so the impact of breakdown is much more pronounced here. The intensity of the breakdown was seen in the three unions namely South Bedkashi, North Bedkashi and Koyra Union of Koara upazilla. A total of 30 kilometer road is badly damaged in the last riverbank erosion. More than 20 thousands people lost their homesteads. Besides, schools, colleges,

mosques, madrasas are facing enormous losses. According to the Upazila Parishad, the property worth Tk. 100 crore was damaged.

So, Gabura, a union of Shyamnagar upazilla is falling victim to the riverbank erosion. Most villages in this union are affected by breakdown. More than 10,000 families of this union have become destitute due to the last riverbank erosion. They lost almost all the wealth of their house and now they are destitute. Basically the reason behind the breakdown of rivers is due to the sea coastal position. As the Bay of Bengal is near, there is a pressure on embankments in every day. In addition, in the monsoon season these embankments become shaky. Due to which the breach is caused due to excessive increase of river water.

3. Adaptation Process of Local People

Adaptation or tactics or survival is a technique of facing any challenges socially and economically. According to Smit et al. (2000) The word adaptation has been evolved from the term adapt, which means making things/conditions/situations more suitable by alerting. Adaptation refers to both the process of adapting and the condition of being adapted.

Adaptation is a process that protects people from the meteorological health effects of humans but also avoids the adverse reaction of the environment.

Adaptation is basically two types-

- 1) Traditional adaptation
- 2) Designed Adaptation (Chowdhury & Azad, 2004: 86-87).

3.1 Traditional Adaptation

The main point of community effort is the conventional adaptation. Through this, people are very sincerely trying to overcome losses due to the effect of any adverse environment.

In the past few years, community management has been playing a special role in tackling the disasters. In this case, people should show more interest in running with any unforeseen situation in the present and the future. For example, it is possible to take a quick step to play an important role in tackling the effects of monsoon climate. Moreover, it has a role in ensuring food supply, providing pure drinking, even responding to disaster mitigation.

3.2 Designed Adaptation

With the prediction of disaster, various steps may be taken to protect the daily necessities of the people. In this case, home appliances those are essentially fit to face adverse conditions, even after any disaster. For example, drainage can be arranged if there is a possibility of water logging. Especially in the case of floods, the above mentioned method may be played an important role. In addition, infrastructural development is essential in river erosion areas. Cyclone centres need to be established.

4. Government Institutions Involved in River Erosion

Government agencies and non-governmental organizations are involved with the process of rehabilitation of displaced and immigrant population in river prevention, control and river erosion. Below is a list of both types of organizations.

Table 1: Government Institutions Involved in River Erosion

Sl.	Name	Founded	Activities	Financed by
1	Ministry of Water Resources			Government
2	Water Development			Government
	Board			
3	River Research	1990	Sediment Technology, Soil	Government
	Institute		Mechanism, River Hydrology,	
			Hydrology of Structure of	
			Structure of Irrigation.	
4	Institutes of Water	1996	Implementation and Observation	Government
	Resources Planning		of National Water Planning,	
			Promotion and renewal of	
			information for water resources	
	D: .			G
5	Disaster			Government
	Management			
	Bureau			
6	Ministry of Housing			Government
	and Public Works			
7	Ministry of LGED			Government

Source: Prepared by Researcher

5. Non-Government Organisations Involved in River Erosion

Table 2: Non-Government Organisations Involved in River Erosion

Sl.	Name	Founded	Activities	Financed by		
1	CEGIS	2002	River erosion survey, river erosion,	Government, USAID,		
			predication and other research related	arch related Netherland Government		
			to the river.			
2	IWM	1996	To research Water Resources, Fluvial			
			Hydraulics and River Morphology,			
			River Engineering, Esquire and			
			Marine System Management,			
			Integrated Coastal Zone Management			
3	Coast Trust	1984	River erosion research, financial	Action Aid, PKS,		
			assistance for the victims,	Manusher Jonno		
			rehabilitation assistance.	Foundation		
4	Action Aid					
5	Oxfam					
6	Char	2005	To improve the quality of lives of the	Bangladeshi and		
	Development		coastal people.	Netherland Government		
	and Settlement					
	programme					

Source: Prepared by Researcher

6. Investment Trends to Combat River Erosion

Although river erosion is recognized as a major disaster for rural and urban poverty unending, it is still not possible to find the cooperation of policy makers and donor groups. However, since the independence of the government, some steps have been taken in a small scale. But this step is very little and temporary-based. This is one of the main initiative is Flood Action Plan (FAP) out of all these steps. But the government's policy is very slow regarding the procedures.

From the year 1971-72 and 1999-2000, the average allocation was only 1245 million BDT annually. The entire parts of it come from the government's own fund. However, there was little participation of donor groups in this regard. Various initiatives are noticed after this in

1993: Secondary Towns Integrated Flood Protection Project (STIFPP), Dhaka Integrated Flood Protection Project (DIFPP), Jamuna Multipurpose Bridge (JMB), River Training Works and River Bank Protection Project (RBPP). None of these initiatives were not enough for the rehabilitation of the disaster affected peoples. The initiatives taken by the government were including the city-building project, flood control dam, blocking river in erosion area, rebuilding of dams etc. But in this case, people with vulnerabilities need rehabilitation, including poverty alleviation, education, and new housing construction assistance. But this kind of initiative has not been noticed so far (Rahman, 2003: 86-87).

Besides, both government and non-governmentaly short-term and long-term measures are taken for residents of coastal areas.

7. Short-term Measures

One of the government and non-government short-term measures is the rehabilitation of the affected people, the various river policies, employment solutions and employment opportunities. These are discussed below.

7.1 Rehabilitation of Affected People

In any disaster, government and non-governmental organizations operate an emergency operation. But their support is not enough compare to necessities. Studies shown that a very few residents of the affected areas can be rehabilitated.

Bangladesh has a long history of its land management. According to the Alluvium and Villuviam law of 1825, the sediment land will be considered as the property of the actual owner. The ownership of sediment land was handed over to the government. The purpose of this order was to divide the Char lands from the hands of influential elites to landless merchants. By the provisions of 1978 it revitalized it and the sediment land came to the actual owners where the rights of old owners could be acknowledged. But through field observations, there are some illegal processes going on. As time goes on in the process of mischief, deceit of poor dwellers with the help of fraudulent fraud or with the help of the settlement officer, such steps are taken to declare the land. Later, for a long time, the land was taken under the name of fake owner.

Such incidents severely disrupt the rehabilitation process of the landless community. In 1994, the law was changed again and the land was called it was said to be brought under government control so that it could be distributed among poor landless populations.

7.2 Various Remedy Policies for River Erosion

In fact, the chance of prevention of breakdown by taking short-term planning is very limited and the scope of permanent migrations to the population is also inadequate. For this reason, on the basis of material and socio-economic planning, it is necessary to deal with immediate rehabilitation and take the risk of breakdown. If the proper steps are not taken, then the problem of breakdown will continue to affect the economy and the human habitation of the relevant region. In the initial stage of the planning process, long-term goals must be kept in mind and reflecting the aspiration of the local experts and the hopes of remote people.

7.3 Creating Employment Opportunities

Employment opportunities are very limited due to the number of people infected in the areas. But there is a unique opportunity to conduct life in a traditional way. Under the food project, landless unskilled workers can be engaged in various activities. NGOs can take various steps to manage works for unemployed people under special projects.

8. Long-term Steps

Many times government and non-governmental organizations take long-term measures based on social, political and economic issues. It is mentioned below.

8.1 Right to Eat

The right to food is recognized as the most important fundamental right, because of the absence of food, other political, economic independence becomes meaningless. Most of the people who suffer from river erosion do not eat well, so they have to be fasted sometimes. Many government and non-government organizations help to feed people who are affected by river erosion.

8.2 Right to Habitats

The person who loses his residence thinks that he loses everything. As it is the main source of survival and livelihood. River erosion is a disaster that manages to take away people's habitat, so that the affected people become vulnerable and turns floating people. So the main problem is that after the breakdown is to find out a safe place to live. These floating peoples then built houses on embankments, roads and make temporary shelters on other lands. Government or non-governmental initiatives such as rehabilitation are done in many cases.

8.3 Right to Education

A human mind can not be developed without proper education. Education must be needed in order to create emotional and positive emotions for people. In the research area, both government and non-government measures are seen to repair those academic institutions. People dealing with river erosion lead to such a life which is very unstable and insecure, where food is not available, and many children do not go to school for minimum education. Again many times, many parents try to raise their income by employing boys instead of sending schools. Indeed, there is lack of enough educational institutions in the displaced areas. After the breakdown, the number of students dropped out from schools severely because they have to move to other places with their parents. In those cases, those who leave school are rarely admitted to school again because they are forced to work.

8.4 Right to Healthcare

Healthcare is a fundamental right of people which includes nutrition, healthy Food, sanitation and clean Environment. Although the quality of medical services have improved significantly in Bangladesh, but the poor people do not have the capability to accept this service. Although the people of the land can accept it at some level, it is difficult to take advantage of the opportunity for the reclining people those live in the chars. Maternal health care, family planning, and child health are almost absent in all these (Char) areas. Moreover, government health officials in the river do not agree to go. In these areas, maternal and child mortality rates are very high.

8.5 Migrated people and Sanitation's Rights

People in the research area suffer from severe sanitation problems. Most people who live on embankments and on the road side they don't have the opportunity to use safe sanitation and toilets. In particular cases, many people use bush jumps instead of using raw or seasoned latrines. Although many people use latrines, they can not be called sanitary latrines. In this case, lack of understanding about their ignorance, illiteracy, and disease germs is the main reason. Most of the people in the area are deprived of sanitary facilities.

8.6 Right to Drinking Safe Water

The previous discussion shows that people with disruption are deprived of safe drinking water. Most of them do not have the ability to arrange tubewells for drinking water. They

(immigrants) can not collect water from their rich neighborhoods tube well. Because they are not allowed to collect water from there.

As a result, they take unsafe water from the river. But the right to drink safe food with health and healthcare is directly involved. Therefore, it is not possible to ensure the right to health of those who have lost their lives in safe drinking water and food insecurity.

8.7 Political Rights

Women voting right are also associated with river erosion. Although their franchise is included in the constitution, sometimes they are excluded from the voters list due to limited livelihood, housing change and social isolation. In the case of women, due to their lonely career and patriarchal system, limited mobility and political environment prevent them from voting rights.

8.8 Right to Work

As a result of river erosion, changes in new areas of immigration and change in labor conditions are also noticed. In this case, the issue of labor women in outside area is also important to sustain their household. Women used to labor only at home before, but in order to adapt them to the changing situation of river erosion, women also have to labor outside along with the household. In this case, women do various functions like cooking, bathing, roasting, cooking, cloth washing, roasting and snewing clothes at home. Although the work of men has narrowed after river-breakdown, women's work has increased and they can do some additional works all year round. As a result, women can contribute towards household income and their views are also becoming increasingly important in household decisions.

8.9 Economic Rights

Economic rights are essential for each person's development. This right of the people of the affected areas is seriously decreaseed due to river erosion. Economic rights refers to access to various types of economic resources (such as land, labor, financial capital, commodity and market exchange, etc.). Every person has economic rights and these rights can be described as follows- 1. Right to Land and natural resources, 2. Right to national credit, 3. Right to enjoy fruit of labour and 4 Right to protect properties.

In these cases, the government and non-governmental organizations, even the institutions, assist in the process of adaptation of river erosion in the coastal areas, but it is slightly smaller than the requirement.

8.10 Local's Migration in the Sphere of River Erosion

The migration of Kodabak riverbank erosion affected peoples usually depends on socioeconomic issues. In this case, there is a lot of impact on food management. As the research area is located in the sub-basin region of coastal areas, the relocation of the locals depends on various subjects. For example, domesticated duck conditions, filling of riverbeds, cultivating salinity tolerant crops, providing safe drinking water, floating gardens, depositing crops of different periods etc. Residents of the area are also in the process of taking various steps. However, government and non-governmental organizations involved in river erosion also play an important role.

9. Maintenance of Ducks as Domestication Animals

The domestication of ducks in the research area has become one of the key centers of income. After the disaster, many families are seen to rear ducks. Apart from these, the non-governmental organization 'Beautiful Project' distributed ducks among the distressed people of the research area. And women's role in keeping goats is also noteworthy.

10. Construction and Maintenance of Embankments

The people of the research area have been able to stay in their areas by constructing and repairing of the embankments. With the help of the government, work was done to prevent river erosion. Besides, long-term projects were taken by various non-governmental organizations. Among them, the 'Sushalon' and 'Islamic Relief' works in the research area to repair the dam through a project "Food through works". As a result, a large part of the local population works under this project and they work for their livelihood.

11. Harvesting Salinity-tolerant Crops

After the river erosion, the amount of salinity on the soil has been increased many times in these coastal areas. There is no way to cultivate any crop other than cultivating salinity-toleranted crops. In this study area, shrimp cultivation has become the most acceptable and profitable task. Many people are cultivating shrimp fishes on their land and many others take lease land from others. But shrimp cultivation is not pleasant at all this time. Shrimp cultivation is being disrupted due to various types of viral diseases. As a result, the inhabitants of these regions have gradually moved towards another profession.

12. Safe Water Supplies in Saline Areas

Safe water availability is very difficult due to the salinity of the coastal areas. Here the only source of safe water is Deep tubewell. However, its number is very limited. There are 4 arsenic-free tubewells for 2,000 people in Padmapukur vllage of research area. But during the river erosion, people of the area usually use big jar to keep rain water for their future necessities.

13. Floating Garden

Floating gardens in the river erosion area are now becoming a very popular business. Due to salinity, there is no other crop except shrimp in the arable land. For this reason, many families are now cultivating different types of vegetables on the top of their houses. In the research area, people have been cultivating various types of crops by staging raw materials near their houses. For example, Brinjal and Leopards, etc.

14. Crop Production in Rainwater

After the river erosion, there was no possibility to produce any crop due to the salinity of the water. But gradually the people of this region, using rain water, produce crops with different monsoon, and now the people are turning towards rice cultivation. Recent trends of rice cultivation are noticed.

15. Constructing Cyclone-resistant Shelters

Shortly after the river erosion, those who had to build a new residence were somehow natural disaster-resistant. The misgration process is less witnessed for constructing this sort of houses now a day. That's why the adaptation process is still very low. Basically their morale is very important in the survival of the people of this region. Moreover, a shelter center has been constructed recently in Padmapukur village. Besides, when the houses are destroyed in the river during breakdown, various private organizations arrange their house and proper sewage disposal. In addition to the adaptation of the people of the coastal region, the local people take various steps in addition to the government and non-government organizations.

16. Referrences:

Haque, M. Inamul, *Water Resources Management in Bangaldesh*, April, 2008, page-53 Chowdhury, Abrar R.& Azad S. N., *Coping with Displacement*, RDRS Bangladesh & North Bengal Institute, Dhaka, 12 May 2004. p-86-87.

	Life on a			Riverbank	Erosion	Induced